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MONTGOMERY TOWNSHIP SCHOOLS

1014 ROUTE 601 * SKILLMAN, NJ = 0B558-2112 * PHONE (609) 466-7600 * FAX: (609) 466-0944

February 17, 2023

Dr. Zelda Spence-Wallace, President and
Members of the Board of Education
Township of Montgomery School District
Somerset County, Naw Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The Annual Comprehensive Financlal Report (ACFR) of the Township of Montgomery School District for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 is hereby submitted. This ACFR includes the Districts Basic
Financial Statements prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for
governmental entities as established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Responsibility
for both the accuracy of the data and compieteness and faimess of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the management of the Township of Montgomery School District.  To the best of
our knowledge and balief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is
reported in a manner designed to present faitly the financial position and resufts of operations of the
various funds of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of
the District's financial activities have been included.

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report is presented in four sections as follows:

~The Introductory Section includes this transmiital letter, the District's organizational chart and a
list of principal officials.

-The Financial Section begins with the Independent Auditors’ Report and includes the
Management's Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements and Notes providing an
overview of the School District's financial position and operating results, and other schedules
providing detailed budgetary information.

-The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally
presented on a multi-year basis.

-The Singie Audit Section - The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity
with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, P.L. 104 - 156 and the Uniform
Guidance and the New Jersay OMB's Circular 15-08, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid Payments.” information related to this single audit,
including the auditor's report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and findings and recommendations, are included In the single audit section of this

report.



1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The Township of Monigomery School District is an
independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the GASB as established by NCGA Statement
Ne.3. All funds of the District are included in this report. The Township of Montgomery School District
and alf its schools constitute the District's reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels PRE-K through 12.
These include regular as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. Those students who
have a desire for vocational training attend the Somerset County Vocational School. The District
enrollment for the 2021-22 fiscal year as reported on the ASSA report in October 2021 was 4,533
students, which is 7.5 students above the previous year's enroliment. The following chart details the
changes in the student enroliment of the District since the 2012 - 2013 school year.

Enroliment Comparison as of Qctober 2021

Fiscal Student Percent
Year Enroliment Change
201213 4,883 -3.1%
2013/14 4,783 -2.0%
2014115 4,737 -1.0%
2015/16 4,763 0.5%
2016/17 4,767 0.0%
2017118 4,720 -1.0%
201819 4,680 -0.8%
2019120 4,671.5 -0.18%
2020721 4,525.5 -3.1%
2021/22 4,533 0.002%

Township of Montgomery Schools' programs are designed to meet the academic and curricular needs of
all students K-12. Academic programs address specific content areas, gifted and talented enrichment,
college preparatory, advanced placement, career readiness, basic skills and special education. Middle
and high school programs include a wide selection of elective courses in science, communications, social
studies, world languages, music, art, computer sciences, media, home economics, and industrial
technologies. To accommodate these offerings, the district maintains modern, well-equipped buildings
that are developmentaily appropriate. The district configuration by school is K-2, 3-4, 5-6, 7-8 and 9-12.

The district places great value on professional growth opportunities for its administrative and teaching
staff. During the 2021-22 school year the district spent nearly $57,368 on professional learning in all
areas of the curriculum. The district also reimbursed teaching staff $165,137 to assist with the cost of
college tuition for graduate coursework in order to keep teachers current in the latest best practice in
education. :

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: The Montgomery Township School District provides
educational services to resident students in Montgomery Township and the Borough of Rocky Hilt and
includes a very diverse tax base. The District is approximately 52 miles southwest of New York City and
51 miles northeast of Philadelphia. US Route 208 and County Route 518 link the township to large
regional employment centers via inferstate highways 95 and 295. For the first time in the past four years
there was minor student growth after the district had seen a trend of declining enroliment. New
developments constructed in Montgomery Township have generated some additional students, but the
net impact expected over the next few years is that overall enroliment will remain stable.



3. MAJOR INITIATIVES:

Jechnology:

The district continues to upgrade iis wireless infrastructure bringing MHS online to current WiFi 6 rated
Access Points in the current fiscal year. Also a continued commitment to providing incoming 5th graders
with new Chromebooks as they enter the district 1:1 inifiative. Staff 1:1 devices are coming due for a
refresh and a significant portion of the next year's technology budget will be used to provide adequate
faculty devices, sustain the subscriptions to digital tools and resources for instructional use, and to
maintain our current infrastructure. Classroom presentation and interactive projectors are also starting to
be refreshed phasing out the oldest, end of life models first. This will be a 4 year staggered rollout
addressing each model as it goes EOL.

Curricuium and Instruction:

In the 2022-23 school year, the math program for K-3 will be implemented. The current program was
purchased over seven years ago and no longer meets our instructional or technology needs. In addition,
the NJDOE adopted NJSLS 2022 in Career Readiness, Life Literacies, and Key Skills; Comprehensive
Heaith and Physical Education; Computer Science & Design Thinking; Science; Social Studies; Visual
and Performing Arts; and World Languages. All of our district curriculum documents have been updates
to be in alignment with the new standards and reflect any additional State legisiation.

The MTSD BOE and Administration are committed to developing a culturally-responsive curriculum in
which diverse accomplishments, perspectives, and significant historical events are covered. This
endeavor will require both 8 commitment to curricular revisions, staff development, and student resources
and experiences.

Additionally, in the post-pandemic era, there is a heavy emphasis on data-driven instruction in order to
close the learning gap caused by Covid-19. New assessment software and intervention software has
been purchased for Math and ELA. We have also added a universal screener for early detection of
dyslexia and other early reading delays. Aligned with these purchases, time and resources have been
aliocated to provide professional development to all of our staff.

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for establishing
and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are
protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow
for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) there are limited
resources and that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to those programs. This internal conirol structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by the
District management. As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine
the adequacy of the internal structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial
assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and
regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addiion fo internal accounting controls, the District maintains
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annuai appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund and the debt
service fund. Amendments to the line items within these funds are approved by the Superintendent and
subsequently ratified by the Board of Education, in accordance with state statute and Board Policy.



An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservations of
fund balance at June 30, 2022,

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect generally
accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). The accounting systemn of the District is organized on the basis of funds which are explained in
"Notes to the Financial Statements,” Note 1.

7. DEBT ADMINISTRATION: Starting with the 2001-2002 Budget the community felf the impact of the
debt associated with the high schoo! project. In 2009 and 2016, the school district introduced bond
referendums for various improvements to the district schools which added to the school district debt. The
school district could no longer afford to pay for these major maintenance issues through the annuai
budget process and decided to capitalize these major infrastructure improvements through the sale of
bonds which would be paid for over the life of the enhancement of the asset. The district was also able to
take advantage of state funds to reduce the impact on totai debt. The school district is well within its
borrowing capacity with this increased debt since the available borrowing margin is $155,347,701.

8. CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the Disfrict is guided in {arge part by state statute as
detailed in "Notes to the Financial Statements,” Note 2. The District's cash management plan allows it to
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental
Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 and updated in 2009 to protect
Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The
faw requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey
where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board of Education carries various forms of insurance, including but not
limited to general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft Insurance on
property damage and contents and fidelity bonds.

10. OTHER INFORMATION: Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by
independent certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of
Suplee Clooney & Company was selected by the Board of Education. In addition to meeting the
requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the related Uniform Guidance and state Treasury Circular 15-
08 OMB. The auditor's report on the basic financial statements and combining individual fund statements
and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically
to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this report.

Respectfully submitted,

YY\OJU.( E.m"La\z\aM\ Wl’hlfl/l—?f"

Mary E. McLoughlin Thomas M. Venanzi
Superintendent of Schools Interim Business Admininstrator/Board Secretary
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FINANCIAL SECTION




SuPLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone S08-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

¥-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Township of Montgomery School District
County of Somerset

Skillman, New Jersey 08558

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities and each major fund of the Township of Montgomery School District,
County of Somerset, New Jersey (the “District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred o above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities and each major fund of the District as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Baslis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, audit requirements prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey, the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (the “Uniform Guidance”) the audit requirements of State of New Jersey OMB
Circular 15-08 “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.”
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Qur responsibilities under those standards
and provisions are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinions.



SuPrLEE, CLOONEY & COoMPANY
Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, for the year ended June 30, 2022,
the District adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87, Leases. Our
opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of ftnanClal statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
District's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement
date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’'s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, the Uniform Guidance, the State of New Jersey OMB
Circular 15-08 and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards the
Uniform Guidance, the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

s FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time. 9



SurLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information in Exhibit C-1 through
C-3, the schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions in Exhibit L-1 through L-4 and
the schedules related to accounting and reporting for postretirement benefits other than pensions
(OPEB) in Exhibits M-1 and M-2 are presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management'’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The accompanying
supplementary information schedules and data such as the combining statements and individual
fund financial statements, and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State
Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by the Uniform Guidance, New
Jersey’'s OMB Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants
and State Aid,” and the State of New Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additiona! procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The
other information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Qur opinions on the basic financial
statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of
assurance thereon.

10
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In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other
information and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. i, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material
misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 17, 2023 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SKILLMAN, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

The Management's Discussion and Analysis of the Township of Montgomery School District (the
“District”) offers readers of the District’s financial statements a narrative overview of the financial
activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. The intent of this discussion is to look at the
District's financial performance as a whole; therefore, readers should aiso review the transmittal
letter at the front of this report, along with the District's financial statements and notes to the
financial statements to enhance their understanding of the District’s financial performance.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No.
34 — Basic Financial Statements-Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for the State and Local
Governments issued in June 1999. Certain comparative information between the current fiscal
year (2021-2022) and the prior fiscal year (2020-2021) is required to be presented in the MD&A.
In fiscal year 2022 the District implemented GASB Statement No. 87- Leases.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2021-22 are as follows:

» At the district-wide financial statements, revenue from governmental activities accounted
for $122,601,330 or 98 percent of total school district revenue. The other 2 percent of
revenue was generated by the business type activities.

o The district financial performance for the year was strong by generating over $1.9 million
dollars in excess revenue and accumulating over $4 million in unexpended balances
from budget appropriations. The financial condition is stable and manageable for the
next few years as forecasted in the district’s long-range financial plan.

» The Board of Education decreased its outstanding debt by $11,956,726.59, most was
due to a decrease in bonds payable and the net pension liability as reported by the State
Actuarial reports.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (“ACFR”) consists of three parts: Management's
Discussion and Analysis (this section), The Basic Financial Statements, and Required
Suppiementary Information. The Basic Financial Statements include two kinds of statements that

present different views of the District, District—wide Financial Statements and Fund Financial
Statements.

+ District-Wide Financial Statements provide both short-term and long-term information about
the District’'s overali financial status.
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SKILLMAN, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED
+ Fund Financial Statements report the District’s operations in more detail than the District-
wide statements on individual parts of the District, the Governmental Funds and Proprietary
Funds.

» Governmental Funds Statements tell how basic services such as regular and special
education were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

» Proprietary Funds Statements offer short and long-term financial information about the
activities the District operates like a business, which include food services and summer
enrichment programs.

The notes to financial statements are also included, which are an integral part of the financial
statements. The information in the notes provides detailed data on the District's financial
operations.

Required supplementary information further explains and supports the financial statements with a
comparison of the District's budget for the year. Exhibit A-1 reflects how the various parts of this
annual report are arranged and related to one another.

District-Wide Financial Statements

The District-Wide Financial Statements report information about the District as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net
assets includes all of the District’s assets and liabilities. All current year's revenue and expenses
are accounted for in the statement of activities regardiess of when cash is received or disbursed.

The District-Wide Financial Statements report the District's net position and how they have
changed. Net position, the difference between the District’'s assets and liabilities, is one way to
measure the District’s financial health or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the
District's net position are an indicator of whether its financial position has improved or diminished.
The causes of this change may be a result of many factors, some financial and some not. Non-
financial factors include the District's property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting
revenue growth, facility condition, required educational programs and other factors.

In the District-Wide Financial Statements, the District’s activities are divided into two categories,
governmental and business-type activities.

« Governmental activities - All of the District's programs and services are reported here
including, but not limited to regular and special education instruction, support services,
operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular
activities. Property taxes and state formula aid finance most of these activities.
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SKILLMAN, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED
Business-Type activities - These services are provided on a charge for goods or services
basis to recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided. District charges fees to
help it cover the costs of certain services it provided. The food service and summer
enrichment activities are reported as business activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds, focusing
on major funds. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of
funding and spending on particular programs. Some funds are required by state law and by bond
covenants. The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
purposes (i.e., long-term debt) or to show that it is properly using certain restricted revenues (i.e.,
entitlement grants).

The District maintains two financial funds:

Governmental Funds: The District's activities reported in governmental funds focus on how
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for
spending in the future years. These funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting that measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the District's general government operations and the basic services it
provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational
programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the
district-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities) and governmental funds
statements is reconciled in the financial statements.

Proprietary Funds: Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the District-wide
financial statements. The District’'s enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the
same as its business-type activities but provide more detail and additional information, such
as cash flow.
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SKILLMAN, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

The District's combined net position has increased from the 2020-2021 fiscal year.

The net

position from governmental activities increased $6,976,119.70. Net position from business-type
activities increased $808,961.32. Table 1 below reflects the District’s net position as a whole.

Table 1

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Current and
Other Assels

Capital Assets
Tolal Assels

Deferred Qutfiows

Relaled I Loss From

Refunding Debt
Related fo Pensions

Total Deferred Qutfiow  3,820,661.91

Long-Term
Liabilifies
Short-Term
Liabilifies

Total Liabilifies

Deferred Inflows
Relaled to Pensions

Net Position:
Net investment
in Capital
Assets
Restricled
Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net
Position

Total
Governmental Activilies Business-Type Aclivifes Total School District Percentage
FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2001 Change
$20,067,787.04  §27,742,198.57 $1,379,009.95 $502,080.24  $31,346,886.99  $28,244,278.81 10.98%
93,449,692.74 98,411,935.72 213,593.48 253,264.39 93,663,286.22 98,665,200.11 (5.07%)
12341747978 126,154,134.29 1,592,693.43 75534463  125010173.21  126,900,478.92 {1.50%)
581,136.11 663,402.96 581,136.91 £63,402.96 (12.40%)
3,239,525.00 4,118,711.00 3.239,525.00 4,118,711.00 {21.35%)
4,782,113.96 3,820,661.91 4,782,113.96 {20.11%)
59,046.469.06 71,080,830.25 59,046,469.06 71,090,830.25 {16.94%;)
10,138,602.39 9,832,998.58 344,870.77 314,573.29 10,483,473.18 10,147,571.87 3.31%
69,185,071.45 80,923,828.83 344,870.77 421,987.98 69,529,942.22 81,238,402.12 (14.41%}
9,742,428.00 8,480,975.00 9,742 428.00 8,480,975.00
44,166,338.81 42,154,898.61 21359348 253,264.39 44,379,932.29 42,408,164.00 4.65%
20,306,223.05 18,356,237.80 20,306,223.05 18,356,237.80 10.62%
{20,022,190.14)  (23,036,885.39) 1,068,796.97 220,164.74 (18,953,393.17)  (22,816,720.65) {16.83%)
$44,450,371.72  $37,474,252.02 $1,282,390.45 $473,420.13  $45732,762.17  $37,947,681.15 20.52%
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL. DISTRICT
SKILLMAN, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

UNAUDITED
Table 2
Changes in Net Position from Operating Results
Governmental Business-Type Total School
Activities Activiies District
FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021
Revenue:
Program Revenue:
Charges for Services $737.963.00 $440,053.26 $428,945.03 $324,397.22 $1,166,908.12 $764 45048
Operating Grants and
Contributions 25,158,608.71 $32,136,737 41 267494207 385,8680.12 27,833,548.78 32,522,617 .53
General Revenue:
Property Taxes 88,496,956.00 86,794,432.00 £8,496,356.00 86,794,432.00
Federal and State Aid
not restricted 7,381,608.01 6,884,258.64 7,381,608.01 6,884,258 64
Other §26,196.01 585,766.53 16217 220.86 §26,348.18 585,987.39
Total Revenue 122,601,329.82 126,841,247 .84 3,104,039.27 710,498.20 125,705,369.08 127.551,746.04
Expenses:
instruction 72,503,573.42 75,019,985.91 72503,573.42 75,019,985.91
Student & Instructonal

Support Services 19,011,507.18 18,107,053.84 19,011,507.18 18,107,053.84
Administrative and

Business 9,409,720.08 10,052,758 .44 9,409,720.09 10,062,758 .44
Maintenance &

Operations 6,343,439.90 7,366,247 .55 6,343.439.90 7,366,247 55
Transportation 5,565,208.81 4,733,357.55 5,565,208.81 4,733,357.55
Other 2,191,760.72 2,077 605.83 2,295,077 95 674 49277 5,086,838.67 2,752,098.60

Total Expenses 115,625,210.12 $17,357,009.12 2,295,077 95 674,492.77 117,920,288.07 118,031,501.88
increase/(Decrease} in
Net Position $6,976,119.70 $9,484,238.72 $808,961.32 $36,005.43 $7,785.081.02 $9.520,244 .15
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SKILLMAN, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

Sources of Revenue for the Fiscal Year 2022

The District's total revenue for the 2021-2022 school year was $125,705,369.09 as reflected in
Table 3 below. Property taxes accounted for 70.40 percent of the total revenue with the other
29.60 percent consisting of state and federal aid, charges for services, and miscellaneous sources.

Table 3
Sources of Revenue
_ FY 2022 FY 2021

Sources of Revenue Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Property Taxes $88,496,956.00 70.40% $86,794,432.00 68.05%
Operating State and Federal Aid 32,725,596.73 26.03% 37.698,220.98 29.56%
Federal and State Granis 2,604,574.71 2.07% 1,708,646.19 1.34%
Charges for Services 1,166,908.12 0.93% 764,450.48 0.60%
Other 711,333.53 0.56% 585,087.39 0.45%
$125,705,369.09 100.00% $127,551,746.04 100.00%

Expenses

The total expenses for the 2021-2022 fiscal year for all programs and services were
$117,920,288.07. Table 4 below summarizes these program costs. The District's expenses are
predominantly related to instructing, providing services and transporting students, grades
kindergarten through twelve, which accounts for 82.33 percent of the total District costs.
Administrative and business expenses account for the costs of the Office of the Superintendent of
Schools, the Business Office, and the Principal's Offices in all five school buildings. Maintenance
and operations account for the costs of keeping the school buildings and grounds safe, clean and
in good operating condition, and includes all the utility costs related to the school facilities. Other
costs include interest on long-term debt, unallocated depreciation expense and the costs of the
business-type activities of the proprietary funds. It is important to note that depreciation expense
on capital assets is included in expenses for the year under the GASB entity-wide reporting model;
expenses therefore include $5,709,034.00 for depreciation. The decrease in total expenses can

be explained by the change in the post employment benefits expense based on the State's
Actuarial report.
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SKILLMAN, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

UNAUDITED
Table 4
Expenses
FY 2022 FY 2021
Expense Category Amount Percentage Amouni Percentage

Instruction $72,503,573.42 61.49% $75,019,985.91 63.56%
Student & Instruction Services 19,011,507.18 16.12% 18,107,053.84 15.34%
Administrative and Business 9,409,720.09 7.98% 10,052,758.44 8.52%
Maintenance & Operations 5,343,439.90 5.38% 7,366,247 .55 6.24%
Transportation 5,565,208.81 4.72% 4,733,357.55 4.01%
Other 5,086,838.67 4.30% 2,752,098.60 2.33%

$117,920,288.07 100.00% $118,031,501.89 100.00%

Governmental Activities

Table 5 presents the net cost (fotal cost less fees generated by the activities and
intergovernmental aid provided for specific programs) of six major District activities: instruction,
student and instructional services, administration and business, maintenance and operations,

transportation, and other.

taxpayers and the state by each of these functions.

The net cost shows the financial burden placed on the District's

Table 5
Net Cost of Governmental Activities
FY 2022 FY 2021
Expense Category Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Instruction $55,483,066.47 61.83% $52,571,766.77 62.01%
Student & Instruction Services 13,657,086.08 16.22% 12,158,077.26 14.34%
Administrative and Business - 7,969,023.34 8.88% 7,974,889.49 9.41%
Maintenance & Operations 6,343,439.90 7.07% 7,366,247.55 8.69%
Transportation 4,175,255.81 4.65% 3,343,404.55 3.94%
Other 2.099,868.72 2.34% 1,364,832.83 1.61%
$80,728.640.32 100.00% $84,780,218.45 100.00%
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SKILLMAN, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED
Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of students and the
interaction between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.

Students and instruction related include the activities involved with assisting staff with the
content and process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration, and central services include expenses associated
with administrative and financial management of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and
equipment in an effective operating condition.

“Other” includes unallocated depreciation.
General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The District’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey Statutes and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of modified accrual and encumbrance accounting.

Over the course of the year, the Board of Education approved revisions to the general fund budget
as needed. These budget amendments were necessary for the following reasons:

+ Changes in administrative structure and needs required additional funds being transferred
into those areas.

+ Realigned appropriations in accordance with the prescribed chart of accounts as needed.

Capital Assets

During the fiscal year 2021-2022, the District's depreciation expense and retired assets exceeded
capital acquisitions, therefore total capital assets net of depreciation decreased. Table & reflects
the comparative balances of capital assets net of depreciation. The detail of the changes in capital
assets is reflected in Note 3 {o the financial statements.
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SKILLMAN, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

UNAUDITED
Table 6
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)
Total
Govenmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Schoo District Percentage
FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021 Change
Land $6,760,785.00 $6,750,785.00 $6,760,785.00 $6,760,785.00
Site
improvements 3,629,329.26 3,991,946.99 3,529,329.26 3.991,94699  (11.58%)
Building and
Building
Improvements 79,608,085.02 67,513,190.52 79,608,085.02 67,513,19052  17.91%
Construction in
Progress 16,179,288.16 16,179,288.16  (100.00%)
Machinery and
Equipment 3,561,493.46 3,966,725.05 $21359348  $253,264.39 3,765,086.94 4,219,989.44  (10.78%)

Total Assets $93,449,692.74  $98,411,93572 $21359348 $253,264.39  $93,663,286.22  §98,665,200.11  (5.07%)

Debt and Long-term Liabilities Administration

At June 30, 2022, the District had $66,349,677.11 of cutstanding long-term debt, consisting of
bonds payable, compensated absences, installment purchase contracts, unamortized premiums
and net pension liability. The District will continue to pay down its debt, as the obligations are due.
Table 7 reflects the comparison of outstanding debt for the past two fiscal years. More information
of the District's long-term debt is presented in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Table 7
Outstanding Long-term Debt
Totai School Debt Total

FY 2022 FY 2021 Percentage Change
Instaliment Purchase Contracts Payable $2,434,427 .43 $3,711,017.78 {34.40%)
Compensated Absences Payable 1,060,117.27 913,558.63 16.04%
Bonds Payable 44,497,000.00 49,787,000.00 (10.63%)
Original Issue Premium 2,933,063.41 3,422.421.29 (14.30%)
Net Pension Liability Payable : 15,425,069.00 20,472,406.00 (24.65%)
$66,349,677.11 $78,306,403.70 (15.27%)
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SKILLMAN, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED
District Highlights

Key district highlights for 2021-22 are as follows:

Monitoring: New Jersey Quality Single Accountability Continuum (QSAC) is the Department of
Education's monitoring and evaluation system. Its primary purpose is to measure and improve
school district performance in meeting State standards in the areas of Governance, Curriculum,
Personnel, Finance, and Facilities. Montgomery Township School District was monitored by the
State Department of Education during the 2019-2020 school year which included site visits,
extensive interviews, and review of all district, state and federal reporting. At the conclusion of the
process, the district was notified that it scored successfully in each of the five weighted areas of
the QSAC review process and was designated as "high performing." The district will be monitored
again during the 2022-2023 school year.

Facilities: During the 2021-2022 fiscal year, all major systems and equipment were inspected and
serviced, as needed. Comprehensive Maintenance Plan (CMP) activities were completed in
accordance with this ongoing multi-year plan of the building's major subsystems. Capital projects
were completed in accordance with the Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP) which plans and
budgets the major infrastructure repairs/enhancements to the district owned assets.

Staff Development: Our faculty members are committed to the constant improvement of their
instructional skill and the acquisition of new strategies that are supported by a professional
development plan around increasing a Universal Design for Learning approach to classroom
instruction and increased awareness of Cultural Literacy to increase equity in access for all
learners. Teachers benefit from opportunities for graduate study at colleges and universities,
professional development seminars, and in-district workshops to support their needs and desire to
grow professionally. Each school year, all of our teachers participate in at least twenty (20) hours
of professional development via in-district workshops, academic coursework, professional learning
communities {PLCs), staff meetings that incorporate professional development, and workshop
facilitation by turnkey trainers.

The District’'s Future

The Montgomery Township School District is in good financial condition after recovering from the
COVID-19 pandemic. Our revenues from building rentals is back to normal and healthy as our
buildings resuming normal operations. In addition, our food service operations revenues have
been robust due to the District participating in the Seamless Summer Operation (SSQ) program.
This program afforded us the ability to provide free meals, breakfast and lunch, to anyone with
district borders under the age of 18. The District continues o support the health and safety of
students and staff with purchases made through the ARP grant. The School District is proud of its
community support of the public schools and continues to be committed to focus future energies
on reducing costs and providing additional revenue sources that will help reduce reliance on the
local property taxes, while still maintaining high guality programming.

In conclusion, the Montgomery Township School District has committed itself to financial
excellence and fiscal constraint for many years. In addition, the School district's system for
financial planning, budgeting and internal financial controls are well regarded. The School District
plans to continue its sound fiscal management to meet the chailenges of the future.
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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Contacting the District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the School District's finances and to show the School District's accountability
for the money it receives. Questions regarding this report can be directed to Mr. Tom Venanzi,
interim School Business Administrator/Interim Board Secretary at the Montgomery Township
School District, 1014 Route 601, Skiliman, NJ 08558.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a financial overview of
the District's operations. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all funds as of June 30, 2022.
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the Districl. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall district, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2022

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

ACTIVITIES

$15,515,681.90

ACTIVITIES

$1,096.085.59

EXHIBIT "A-1"

JOTAL

$16,611,767.49

Receivables, net 3,515,299.38 261,712.88 3.777,012.26
Inventory 21,301.48 21,301.48
Prepaid expenses 34,567.79 34,567.79
Restricted assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 10,936,805.76 10,936,805.76
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 6,760,785.00 6,760,785.00
Other capital assets, net £6,688,907.74 213,593.48 86,902,501.22
Total assets 123,417 479.78 1,627,261.22 125,044,741.00
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Related to loss from debt refunding 581,136.91 581,136.01
Related to pensions 3,230,525.00 3,239 525.00
Total Deferred Ouiflows of Resources 3,820,661.91 3,820,661.91
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable . 2,149,567 .18 2,149 567.18
Accrued liabilities 1,190,200.00 1,190,200.00
Payable to state government 7.756.00 7.756.00
Payroli deductions payable 2,547,652 99 2,547,552 99
Unemployment deductions payable 122,517.53 122,517.53
Unearned revenue 177,341.04 344 870.77 52221181
Inferest payable 500,730.12 500,730.12
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 7.,303,208.05 7.303,208.05
Due beyond one year:
Net Pension Liability 15,425,069.00 15,425,069.00
Compensated absences payable 1,060,117.27 1,060,117.27
Bonds and instaliment purchase contracts payable 42,561,282.79 42,561,282.79
Total liabilities 73,045,341,97 344.870.77 73,380,212.74
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESCURCES:
Related to pensions 9,742, 428.00 9,742,428.00
Total Deferred inflows of Resources 0,742,428.00 9,742 428.00
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assefs 44,166,338.81 213,593.48 44,379,832.29
Restricted for:
Capital projects fund 7,524,995.26 7,524,995.26
Special revenue fund 510,268.15 510,268.15
Other purposes 12,270,959.64 12,270,959.64
Unrestricted (deficit) (20,022,190.14) 1,068,796.97 {18,953,393.17)

Total net position

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$44,450,371.72

$1,282,390.45

$45,732,762.17
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MAJOR FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual fund financial statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual
fund in a format that segregates information by fund type.
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ASSETS!

Assels:

Cash and cash equivaients
Cash on hand with fiscal agents
Capital reserve account
Maintenance reserve account
Emergency reserve account
Accourts receivable:

Federal

Staie

Other
interfunds receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilifies:

Accounts payable

Payroll deductions payable

Unemployment deductions payable

Infergovernmental payable:
State

interfunds payabie

Accrued liabHities for health
benefils claims

Unearned revenue

Total fiabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted for:
Capital reserve account
Maintenance reserve account
Emergency reserve account
Excess surplus designated for
subsequent years expenditures
Excess surplus - current year
State unemployment
Student activity funds
Scholarships
Capital projects fund
Debt service fund
Assigned for:
FFCRA/SEME Designated for
subsaequent years expenditures
Year-end encumbrances
Committed for:
Year-end encumbrances
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabitities and fund balances

EXHIBIT "B-1"

SHEET #1
TOW IP OF MONTGO CHOOL DISTRI
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL

FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
$14,460,852.96 $5610,268.15 $1,022,688.17 $32,140.77 $16,025,950.05
433,276.00 433,276.00
6,718,278.22 6,718,278.22
3,000,000.00 3,000,000,00
274,983.39 274,983.39
1,5564.66 379,409.80 380,964.46
3,108,469.27 25,014.65 3,133,483.92
851.00 851.00
414, 406.43 9,021.88 423,428.31
28,411,820.93 890,528.95 1,047,702.82 41,162.65 30,391,215.35
$07,425.26 25,550.92 §32,985.18
2,547,552.99 2,547 552.9¢
122,517.63 122,517.53
7,756.00 7,756.00
182,442.53 240,98578 423,428.31
1,180,200.00 1,180,200.00
12,838.69 164,502.35 177,341.04
4,380,534 .47 380,260.80 240,985.78 5,001,781.05
6,718,278.22 6,718,278.22
3.000,600.00 3,000,000.00
274,983.39 27498339
3,809,656.00 3,808,656.00
3,799,489.76 3,790,489.76
732,883.19 732,883.19
480,885.55 480,889.55
29,378.60 20,378.60
320,288.13 320,288.13
41,162.65 41,162.65
1,601.96 1,681.98
652,255.34 652,255.34
486,428.91 486,428.91
5,042,048.60 5,042,048.60
24,031,286.46 510,268.15 B806,717.04 41,162.65 25,389.434.30
$28,411,820.83 $890,528.95 $1,047,702.82 $41,162.65 $30,391,215.35

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Total Fund Balances {Brought Forward)

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Position (A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Cost of Assets $184,833,984.64
Accumulated Depreciation (91,384,291.90)

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, and other related
amounts that are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Net pension fiability (15,425,069.00)
Compensated absences payable (1,060,117.27)
Installment purchase contracls payable (2,434,427 43)
Serial bonds payable {$44,497 000.00)
Unamortized Deferred Amount on Refunding Bonds, net (2,351,926.50)

(46,848,926.50)

Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of resources are applicable
to future periods and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Pensions:
Deferred Cutflows
Pension related

Deferred inflows:
Pension related

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period

and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
Accounts payable - pension related (1,618,582.00)
Accrued interest payable (500,730.12)

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-1"
SHEET #2

$25,389,434.30

93,449,692.74

(65,768,540.20)

3,239,525.00

(9,742,428 .00)

(2,417.,312.12)

$44,450,371.72



TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES:

Local sources:
Local tax levy
Tuition from other LEA’s within the state
Other restricted misceilaneous
Miscellaneous

Total revenues-local sources

State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current expense:
Instruction:
Regular
Special instruction
Cther instruction
Support services:
Tuition
Student and instruction related services
General adminisirative services
Schooi administrative services
Central services
Administration Information Technology
Plant operations and mainienance
Student transportation sesvices
Employee benefits
Capital outlay
Lapital outlay - debt assessment
Charter Schools
Debt service;
Principal
Injerest

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

(her financing sources (usesy.

Cperating transfers in

Operating transfers out

tnstallment purchase conteacis (non-budgeted)
Total financing sources {uses):
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, July 1, 2021

Fund balances, June 30, 2022

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

ECR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

EXHIBIT "B-2"

SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS

$81,200,772.00 $7,206.184.00 $88.496.956 00
193,166,23 193,166.23
1,107.54 1.107.54
484,155.23 $794,251.24 9,021.88 1,287 428.35
£1.960,201.00 794,251.24 9,021.88 7.206,184.00 80,978,656.12
29,964,405 65 72,708.00 115,014.65 691,892.00 30,844.020 30
17,190.01 2,384,294.39 2,401,484 40
111,950,796 66 3,251,253.63 124,036 53 7.858,076.00 123,224,162 62
25,943,071.96 901,270,91 26,844,342 87
8,880,632.01 770,597.94 9,660,220.95
3,273,026.08 3.273,026.08
2,143,137.26 2,143,137.26
10,196,770.76 1,555,654,30 11.752,425.08
1,568,273.84 1,568,273 84
3,397,202.56 3,357,202 56
1,163,984 .31 1,163,984 31
336,100.31 336,109 31
6,474,718.28 6.474.718.28
5,349,656 48 5,349,658 48
40,527,253.64 40.527.253.64
420,709.15 407,081.87 §36,791.02
158,855.00 158,855.00
62.692.00 62,602.00
£,033.104,19 6.033,104.19

1,057,270.31 1,957,270.31

109,914,094.64 3,227 523.15 407.081.87 7,990,374.50 121,539,074.16
2,036,702.02 23,730.48 {283,045.34) (92.298.50) 1,685,088 66
9.021.88 9,021.68

(9.021.88) (9.024.88)

200,670.00 200,670.00
200,670.00 {9,021.88) 9,021.68 200,670.00
2,237,372.02 23,730.48 (292.067.22) (83.276.62) 1,885,758.66
21,703,014 44 486,537.67 1,098,784.26 124,439 27 23 503 ,675.64
$24,031,286.46 $510,268.15 $805,717.04 $41,162 65 $25.389.434.30

The accompanying notes to the financial slatements are an integrai pari of this statement
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT

EXHIBIT "B-3"

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVEN EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds {from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental aclivities in the statement
of activities (A-2} are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded
capital cutlays in the period.

Depreciation expense
Capital outlays
Capital outiays not capitalized

Proceeds from debl issues are a financing source in the governmental funds. They are not revenue
in the statement of activities; issuing debt increases long-term labilities in the statement of net assets.

Proceeds from instaliment purchase contracts
Deferred amount on refunding bonds

Repayment of long-term debi is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
iong-term liabilities in the statement of net assels and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Payment of bond principal
Payment of instaliment purchase contracts payable

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardless of when due.
In governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued interest is an addition in the
reconciliation.

District pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds when made.
However, they are reported as deferredt outflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position because
the reported net pension liability is measured a year before the District's report date, Pension expense,
which is the changs in the net pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities.

District pension contributions
Less: Pension expense

in the statement of activities, cerlain expenses, e.g., compensaied absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used {paid). When the earned
amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation {-); when the
paid amount exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation {+).

Change in net position of governmental activities

$1,885,758.66

($5.709,034.00)
995 ,646.02
{248,855.00)
(4,962,242.98)
(200.670.00)
407,091.83
206,421.83
5,290,000.00
1,477,260.35
6,767,260.35
82,128.48
1,524,885.00
1,618,467.00
3,143,352.00
{146,558.64)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS
Current assets;
Cash & cash eqguivalents
Accounts receivable:
State
Federal
Other
Prepaid expenses
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Furniture, machinery & equipment

Less accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

EXHIBIT "B-4"

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOOD SUMMER
SERVICE ENRICHMENT TOTAL
74787162 § 348,213.97 1,096,085.59
4,136.06 4,136.06
240,824.72 240,821.72
16,755.10 16,755.10
34,567.79 34,567.79
21,301.48 21,301.48
1,030,88598 § 382,781.76 1,413,667.74
1,301,062.21 § 1,301,062.21
(1,087,468.73) (1,087,468.73)
213,50348 § 213,593.48
1,244 47946 $ 382,781.76 1,627,261.22
84,190.77 § 260,680.00 344,870.77
84,19077 $ 260,680.00 344,870.77
84,190.77 $ 260,680.00 344.870.77
21359348 $ 213,593.48
946,695.21 122,101.76 1,068,796.97
1,160,288.60 $ 122,101.76 1,282,390.45

The accompanying Notes fo the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-B"

TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOOD SERVICE SUMMER
SCHOOL NUTRITION ENRICHMENT TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs 166,219.94 % 166,219.94
Miscellaneous 74,158.09 74,158.09
Other fees 188,567.00 188,567.00
Total operating revenues 24037803 $ 188,567.00 428,945.03
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales - reimbursable programs 75940627 % 769,406.27
Cost of sales - non-reimbursable programs 135,946.74 135,946.74
Salaries 496,965.03 188,883.85 685,848.88
Employee benefits 146,194.90 9,539.14 155,734.04
Other purchased services 112,320.00 63.28 112,413.28
Supplies and materials 151,228.13 360.88 151,589.01
Cleaning, repair and maintenance services 254 .468.82 254,468.82
Depreciation 39,670.91 39,670.91
Total operating expenses 2,086,20080 % 198,877.15 2,285 077.85

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

State sources
State school lunch program
Federal sources
National school lunch program
National school breakfast program
National food distribution commodities
P-EBT Administrative Fee
Interest

Total nonoperating revenues
Change in Net Position
Total net position - beginning

Total net position - ending

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

{(1,855,82277) % (10,310.15) {1,866,132.92)
4450919 § 44,509.19
1,901,348.78 1,901,348.78
683,595.31 683,585.31
44,860.79 44,860.79
628.00 628.00
18217 152.17
2,674,94207 % 162.17 2,675,094.24
81911930 § (10,157.98) 808,961.32
341,169.39 132,259.74 473,429.13
1,160,28869 % 122,101.76 1,2682,390.45




TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Cash flows from operating aclivities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to employee benefits
Payment to suppliers

Net cash provided (used for) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State Sources
Federal Sources
Net cash provided by {used for} noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest and dividends

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalents- July 1

Cash and cash equivalents- June 30

Operating income (loss)}
Adiustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) Decrease in inventory
(Increase) Decrease in other accounts receivable
{Increase) Decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase (Decrease) in unearned revenue

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-6"

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOOD SUMMER
SERVICE ENRICHMENT TOTAL
212,639.89 § 241,945.00 454 ,584.89
(496,965.03) (188,883.85) (685,848.88)
(146,194.90) (9,539.14) (155,734.04)
(1,380,444.22) (2,364.16) (1,382,808.38)
(1,810,964.26) $ 41,157.85 (1,769,806.41)
4196891 § 41,968.91
2,426,048.84 2,426,048.84
2,468,017.75 $ 2,468,017.75
$ 152.17 152.17
$ 152.17 152.17
657,053.49 $ 41,310.02 698,363.51
90,818.13 306,903.95 397,722.08
747,87162 § 348,213.97 1,096,085.59
(1,855,822.77) $ (10,310.15) (1,866,132.92)
39,670.91 39,670.91
32,925.74 32,925.74
(5,146.43) (5,146.43)
(1,910.00) (1,910.00)
(22,591.71) 53,378.00 30,786.29
(1,810,964.26) $ 41,157.85 (1,769,806.41)




NOTE 1:

Township of Montgomery Schoo] District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Township of Montgomery School District have
been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant
of the Board's accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

The Township of Montgomery School District is a Type Il District located in
Somerset County, New Jersey. The District is an instrumentality of the State of
New Jersey, established to function as an educational institution. The District is
governed by a nine member board elected to three-year terms and is responsible
for the fiscal control of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board
and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity
are set forth in Statement No. 39 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board entitled “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units” (GASB 39) as codified in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and meet all of the
following criteria should be discretely presented as component units. These
criteria are:

1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are
entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government.

2. The primary government, or its component unit, is entitled to, or has the ability
to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources of the organization.

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the
specific primary government, or its component units, is entitle to, or has the
ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary government.

The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which
the Board exercises operating control. The operations of the District include
elementary schools through high school Grades K thru 12, located in the
Township of Montgomery. There were no additional entities required to be
included in the reporting entity under the criteria as described above, in the
current fiscal year. Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other
reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Montgomery School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation

The District’'s basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements,
including a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities, and fund
financial statements which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

District-wide Statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall District. Eliminations have been
made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish generally between the governmental and business-type activity of the
District. = Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of the
governmental and business-type activity of the District at fiscal year end. The
Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for the business-type activity of the District and for each
function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that
are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and
(b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirement of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as generally revenues. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each governmental function or business segment is seif-financing or draws
from the general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements. During the fiscal year, the District segregates
fransactions related to certain District functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The
fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds. Separate
statements for each fund category — governmental and proprietary - are
presented. The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE} has elected to
require New Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in
accordance with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE
believes that the presentation of all funds as major is important for public interest
and to promote consistency among district financial reporting models.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Montgomery School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the District. it
is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be
accounted for in another fund. Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and
movable instructional or non-instructional equipment which are classified in the
Capital Outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District
includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. Generally accepted accounting
principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that General Fund
resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived
improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively
from unrestricted revenues. Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are
normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district taxes and appropriated
fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or additions
to fixed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction
of buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in
equipment. These resources can be transferred from and to Current Expense by
board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for and
report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed
to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.
Thus, the Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue from State and Federal Governments (other than major capital projects,
debt service or the enterprise funds) and local appropriations that are legally
restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and
report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to
expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital
facilities and other capital assets (other than those financed by proprietary
funds). The financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds
that are specifically authorized by the voters as a separate guestion on the ballot
either during the annual election or at a special election, funds appropriated from
the General Fund, and from aid provided by the State to offset the cost of
approved capital projects.

Debt Service Fund - Debt service funds are used to account for and report

financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for
principal and interest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise Fund - The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and expenses
pertaining to cafeteria operations. The food service fund is utilized to account for
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (i.e., expenses including
depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on
a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.
The district also considers the operations of the Summer Enrichment program as
enterprise funds.

Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial
records and reported on the financial statements.

District-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: The District-wide
financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in
the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of
revenue, the recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of expenses
versus expenditures. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as
under New Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to remit to its school
district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to
the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as
revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive monies under the
established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an
“accounts receivable”. Revenue from grants, entitiements, and donations are
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported
using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transactions
can be determined and "available” means coliectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recoghized as expenditures to the extent they
have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under
leases and installment purchases are reported as other financing sources.

All governmental and business type activities and enterprise funds of the District
follow FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30,
1989, Accounting Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with
GASB pronouncements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the
general, special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted fo
the county office for approval. In accordance with P.L. 2011, c. 202, which
became effective January 17, 2012, the District elected to move the April 2013
school Board election to the date of the November general election thereby
eliminating the vote on the annual base budget. Budgets are prepared using the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is
established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are
defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the
minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.JA.C. BA:23-2.2(f)1. Expenditures
may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the line item level. All budgset
amendments and transfers must be approved by School Board resolution.
Budget amendments during the year ended June 30, 2022 totaled $248,000.00,
representing emergency reserve funds being utilized. All budget amounts
presented in the accompanying supplementary information reflect the original
budget and the final budget (which have been adjusted for legally authorized
revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and
unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The
capital projects fund presents the remaining project appropriations compared to
current year expenditures. Formal budgetary integration into the accounting
system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary
basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the
exception of the legally mandated recognition of one or more state aid payments
for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary
integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse
at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant
accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the
presentation of GAAP basis financial records.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Encumbrance Accounting

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion
of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds
other than the special revenue fund are reported as assignments of fund
balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but
rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has
received advances are reflected in the balance sheet as unearned revenues at
fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An
entry will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year end.

Interfunds

Interfund receivables and payables arise from transactions between particular
funds and are considered short term in duration. The interfund transactions are
recorded by all funds affected in the period in which the transactions are
executed and are part of the district's available spendable resources.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories of materials and supplies held for consumption in the governmental
funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and year end
balances are not reported in the financial statements.

Inventories of food and/or supplies in the food service fund are recorded at cost
on a first-in, first-out basis or, in the case of Food Distribution Commodities, at
stated value which approximates market.

Prepaid expenses which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as an expenditure in the year of purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

The District has an established formal system of accounting for its capital assets.
Capital Assets used for governmental purposes, which include land, buildings
and improvements and furniture and equipment, are only reported in the district-
wide financial statements. The District generally defines capital assets as assets
with an initial cost of $2,000.00 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of
one year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost.
Donated capital assets are valued at their acquisition value on the date received.
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated in the district-wide statements using the straight-
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
School Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Electrical/Plumbing 30
Vehicles 8
Office and Computer Equipment 5-10
ihstructional Equipment 10
Ground Equipment 15

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused sick days) as
directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB
18), “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” A liability for compensated
absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a
specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is
accrued as employees earn the rights fo the benefits.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Compensated Absences (Continued)

District employees are granted varying amounts of sick days in accordance with
the District's employment contract and personnel policy. Upon retirement,
employees are paid for accrued vacation. The District’s policy permits
employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount of
subsequent years. Upon retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for
the unused sick leave in accordance with the District's agreements with the
various employee unions and contracts.

The liability for compensated absences was accrued using the termination
payment method, whereby the liability is calculated based on the amount of sick
days that are expected to become eligible for payment upon retirement. The
District estimates its accrued compensated absences liability based on the
accumulated sick days at the balance sheet date by those employees who are
currently eligible to receive retirement payments.

For the District-wide Statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to
be used in the following year. For the governmental funds in the fund financial
statements, a liability is reported only for to the extent of the amount actually due
at year end as a result of employee resignations/retirements. Compensated
absences are a reconciling item between the fund level and district-wide
presentations.

Fund Equity

Fund balance restrictions are used to indicate that portion of the fund balance
that is not available for expenditures or is legally segregated for a specific future
use. Designations of portions of the fund balances are established to indicate
tentative plans for financial utilization in a future period. The unreserved fund
balances represent the amount available for future budgetary operations.

Unrestricted retained earnings represent the remains of the District's equity in the
cumulative earnings of the food service fund.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue in the special revenue and proprietary funds represents funds
which have been received but not yet earned. A corresponding accounts
receivable has also been established for any open encumbrances at year end
which is an allowable practice under generally accepted accounting principles.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accrued Liabilities énc& Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liahilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the
district-wide financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are
paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial
statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current
year. Long term debt is recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements
when due.

Net Position

GASB 63 provides guidance for reporting net position in the statement of
financial position and related disclosures. Net Position represents the difference
between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital assets consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling legisiation adopted by the
District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or
reguiations of other governments. The District’s policy is to first apply restricted
resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net positions are available.

Fund Balance — Governmental Funds

in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the following
classifications of fund balance:

Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Restricted ~ includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation. The
District reports the Capital Reserve, Emergency Reserve, Maintenance Reserve,
Student Activities, Scholarships, Unemployment and Excess Surplus as
Restricted Fund Balance.

Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board
of Education, the District's highest level of decision making authority.
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved
by the Board of Education. The District reports amounts Designated for Capital
Project Fund encumbrances as Committed Fund Balance.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance -~ Governmental Funds (Continued)

Assigned — includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific
purpose, but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance.
Under the District's policy, amounts may be assigned by the Business
Administrator. The District reports Year End Encumbrances and Designated for
Subsequent Years Expenditures as Assigned Fund Balance.

Unassigned ~ is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has
not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the
general fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive
unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures -
incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or
assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned
fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to
have been spent first When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers
amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds,
and finally unassigned funds, as needed.

Revenues Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or
are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities
of the current fiscal year. For the District, “available” means within sixty days of
the fiscal year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions (Continued)

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly
giving equal vaiue in return, include property taxes, granis, entitlements, and
donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in
the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the period in which the revenue is earned. Revenue from grants,
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the
District must provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose; and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on
a reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-
exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered
both measurable and available at fiscal yearend: property taxes available as an
advance, interest, and tuition.

Proprietary Fund Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the School District enterprise
funds are charges to customers for sales of food service. Operating expenses
for enterprise funds inciude the cost of sales and services, administrative
expense and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect
expenses are allocated to functions but are reported separately in the Statement
of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer’'s share of social
security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated
based on salaries of the program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is
specifically identified by function and is included in the indirect expense column
of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed
to a specific function is considered an indirect expense and is reported
separately on the Statement of Activities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

Extraordinary and Special ltems

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and
infrequent of occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within
control of management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in
occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal
year.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

In the district-wide financial statements for purposes of measuring the net
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District's proportionate share of the New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System (“PERS”) and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
(“TPAF”) and the additions to/deductions from these retirement systems’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they were
reported by PERS and TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair vaiue.

In the governmental fund financial statements, the year-end pension liability is
not required to be reflected. Pension related revenues and expenditures are
reflected based on amounts that are normally expected to be liquidated with
available financial resources for required pension contributions. Expenditures for
PERS are recognized based upon billings made by the State of New Jersey due
April 18t of each fiscal year. TPAF contributions are paid on the District's behalf
by the State of New Jersey. The governmental fund financial statements reflect
both a revenue and expense for this pension contribution.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources {expense/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has
two items that qualify for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to
loss on refunding bonds and to pensions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources {Continued}

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represenis an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Currently, the District has one item
that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to pensions.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Beginning with the year ended June 30, 2022, the District has implemented
GASB Statement 87, Leases. GASB Statement 87 establishes criteria for
accounting and financial reporting for leases. It creates a single model for lease
accounting and requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for
leases that were previously classified as operating leases. A Lessee is required
to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right to use asset, and a lessor is
required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Board considers petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and short term
investments with original maturities of three months or less as cash and cash
equivalents. Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in public depositories
which are located in New Jersey and which meet the requirements of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA requires a bank
that accepts public funds to be a public depository. A public depository is defined
as a state bank, a nationai bank, or a savings bank, which is located in the State
of New Jersey, the deposits of which are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation. The statutes also require public depositories to maintain
collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed certain insurance limits. Al
collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank or a Banking
institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System, and has capital
funds of not less than $25,000,000.00. Under (GUDPA), if a public depository
fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of the deposits to the
governmental unit.

The Township of Montgomery School District had the following cash and cash
equivalents at June 30, 2022:

Cashin Reconciting Reported

Bank Iterms Total
Govemnmental Funds $ 28,363,084.68 (1,910,597.02) $ 26,452487.66
Proprietary Fund 1,263,363.23 (167,277 .64) 1,096,085.59

$ 29,626,447.91 _{2,077,874.66) $  27548573.25

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the
event of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returned. The District does not
have a specific deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than those policies
that adhere to the requirements of statute. As of June 30, 2022, based upon the
coverage provided by FDIC and NJGUDPA, no amount of the bank balance was
exposed to custodial credit risk. Of the cash on balance in the bank,
$500,000.00 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and $29,126,447.91
was covered under the provisions of NJGUDPA.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments

The purchase of investments by the Board is strictly limited by the express
authority of the N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37 Education, Administration of School Districts.
Permitted investments include any of the following type of securities:

1.

Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America;

Government money market mutual funds which are purchased from an
investment company or investment trust which is registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the “Investment Company
Act of 1940,” 15 U.S.C. 80a-1 et seq., and operated in accordance with
17 C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and which portfolio is limited to U.S. Government
securities that meet the definition of an eligible security pursuant to 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized by
such U.S. Government securities in which direct investment may be made
pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. These funds
are also required to be rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.

Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has
issued in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a
maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase,
provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent
on any index or other external factor,;

Bonds or other obligations of the Local Unit or bonds or other obligations
of school districts of which the Local Unit is a part or within which the
school district is located.

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397
days from date of purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the
Department of Treasury for investment by School Districts;

Local government investment pools that are fully invested in U.S.
Government securities that meet the definition of eligible security
pursuant to 17 C.F.R. § 270a-7 and repurchase agreements that are
collateralized by such U.S. Government securities in which direct
investment may be made pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A.
18A:20-37. This type of investment is aiso required to be rated in the
highest category by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund
established pursuant to section 1 of P.L. 1977, c.281 (C. 52:18A-90.4); or
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NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Investments (Continued)

8. Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if:

a. the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to
paragraphs (1) and (3) of this subsection;

b. the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;

c. the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

d. the underlying securities are purchased through a public
depository as defined in section 1 of P.L. 1970, ¢.236 (C. 17:19-
41); and

e. a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and
security of collateral is executed.

At June 30, 2022, the District had no outstanding investments.

Based upon the limitation set forth by New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37
and its existing investment practices, the District is generally not exposed
to credit risks, custodial credit risks, concentration of credit risks and
interest rate risks for its investments, nor is it exposed to foreign currency
risks for its deposits and investments.
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NOTE3:  CHANGE IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Transfer Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets that are not depreciated:
Land $ 6,760,785 % $ 6,760,785
Construction in progress 16,179,288 {16,179,288)
Total capital assets that are not
depreciated $ 2294007316 § $_(16,179,288) $ 6,760,785
Canital assets being depreciated:
Site improvements $ 11,313,726 $ $ $ 11,313,728
Building and building improvements 135,208,175 248,087 18,140,220 151,696,463
Machinery and equipment 14625219 498,724 39,068 15,163,011
Total capital assets being depreciated 3 161,147,120 $ 746,791 % 16,179,288 % 178,073,200
Total gross assets $ 184,087,194 % 746,791 % $ 184,833,985
Less: accumulated depreciation for:
Site improvements $ (7,321,779} $ (462,618} $ $ (7,784,397)
Building and building improvements (67,604,985) (4,293,393} (71,988,378)
Machinery and equipment (10,658,494} (953,023} {11.611,517)
$__ (85875258) $ {6,709,034) % $_ {91,384,292)
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 08,411,938 § {(4,9682.243) $ $ 93,449,693
Business {ype activities:
Machinery and equipment $ 1,301,082 $ $ $ 1,301,062
Less: accurnulated depreciation (1,047,798) {39,671} {1,087.469)
Proprietary fund capital assets, net $ 253,264 $ (39,671) § $ 213,603

Depreciation was charged to the following expense functions of the district:

Instruction:
Regular
Special
Other
Support Services:
Student and Instruction related services
Schoot Administration
General Administration
Plant operations & maintenance
Transporiation
Direct Expense of various functions

Total Depreciation Expenses, Governmentat Activities

54

2,962,813
275,848
14,303

132,816
357,581
449 530
187,985
1,225,992
102,166

5,709,034




Township of Montgomery School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 4: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Bonds are issued by the District pursuant to the provisions of Title 18A,
Education, of the New Jersey Statutes and are required to be approved by the
voters of the municipality through referendum. The proceeds of bonds are
recorded in the Capital Projects Fund and are restricted to the use for which they
were approved in the bond referendum. All bonds are retired in annual
installments within the statutory period of usefulness.

School Bonds issued by the District are entitled to and benefit from the provision
of the New Jersey Schoo! Board Reserve Act P.L. 1980 ¢.72. Basically, funds
are held by the State of New Jersey within its State Fund for the Support of Free
Public Schools as a school bond reserve pledged by law to secure payment of
principal and interest due on such bonds in the event of the inability of the issuer
to make payments.

The following is a summary of changes in liabilities that effect other long-term
obligations for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Governmental Funds:

Balance Balance Amounts Due
June 30, June 30, Within
2021 Additions Reductlions 2022 One Year
Bonds Payable $49,787,000.00 $5,290,000.00 $44,497 000.00 $5,510,000.00
Unamortized Bond Premium 342242128 489,357.88 2,933,063.41 489,357.88
Installment Purchases Payable 3,711,017.78 $200,670.00 1,477,260.35 2,434,427 .43 1,303,850.17
Compensated Absences 913,558.63 146,558.64 1,060,117 .27
Net Pension Liability 20,472 406.00 - 5,047,337.00 15,425,069.00

$ .. 7630640370 $ 34722864 § 1230395523 $  €6.340677.11 LA&&M
Instaliment Purchases

The Board has entered into several instaliment purchase agreements for copier
equipment, technology and school buses. The agreements are for terms up to
five years. Future annual debt service payments on installiment purchases as of
June 30, 2022, including interest, are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 1,303,850.17 § 58,118.12 § 1,361,968.29
2024 1,049,681.00 20,373.55 1,070,054 .55
2025 40,173.53 1,105.92 41,279.45
2026 40,722.73 556.72 41,279.45

$ 243442743 % 80,154.31 $ 2,514,581.74
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NOTE4:  LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The annual requirements to amortize afl debt outstanding as of June 30, 2022,
including interest payments on issued debt, are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30 Principal interest Total
2023 $ 5,510,000.00 % 1,669,52250 % 7,179,522.50
2024 5,675,000.00 1,428,772.50 7,103,772.50
2025 6,245,000.00 1,179,647.50 7.424,647.50
2026 5,000,000.00 947,272.50 5,847.272.50
2027 4,150,000.00 766,647.50 4,916,647.50
2028 4,295 000.00 604,147.50 4,899,147.50
2029 4.410,000.00 462,347.50 4,872,347 .50
2030 4,540,000.00 315,847 .50 4,855,947.50
2031 4,672 000.00 162,472.50 4,834 472 .50

$ 44.407.00000 ¢ 183077750 $  52.033.777.50

56



NOTE 4:

Township of Montgomery School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2022

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The Bonds Issued and Outstanding at year end are comprised of the following issues:

$18,502,000 of 2016 bonds due in remaining anhual
instaliments of $1,200,000 to $1,600,000 through April 2031
af interest rates of 2% to 2.375% $ 13,002,000.00

$33,695,000 of 2017 Refunding bonds due in remaining annual
instaliments of $2,165,000 to $3,170,000 through April 2031
at interest rates of 4% to 5% 23,930,000.00

$9,650,000 of 2021 Refunding bonds due in remaining annual
installments of $975,000 to $2,250,000 through August 2025
at interest rates of 5% 7,565,000.00

$ 44,497,000.00

Under New Jersey Statutes the District may incur debt in an amount not to
exceed 4% of the averaged equalized valuation basis of real property. For the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the District borrowing capacity under N.J.S.
18A:24-19 would be as follows:

Equalized Valuation

Year of Real Property
2021 $5,101,180,071.00
2020 4,917,151,568.00
2019 4.970,020,936.00
$14,088,352,575.00
Average equalized valuation of property $4,998,117,525.00
School borrowing margin
{4% of $4,917,857,474.00) $199,844,701.00
Net bonded school debt and authorized but
not issued as of June 30, 2022 44 497 000.00
School borrowing power available $155,347,701.00
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PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - All required employees of the District are covered by
either the Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers' Pension and
Annuity Fund which have been established by state statute and are administered
by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the
State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be
assumed by the State of New Jersey shouid the Systems terminate. The
Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial
statements and required supplementary information for the Public Employees
Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports
may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box
295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefils, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding
situation, as under current statute, ali employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behaif of the District and the system’s other related non-
contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially ail teachers
or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners,
and employees of the Department of Education wheo have titles that are
unclassified, professional and certified.

Public Employvees’ Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the
provision of N.J.S.A. 43;15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement
System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for
substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not
required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or
other state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) - The Defined Contribution
Retirement Program (DCRP) was established under the provision of Chapter 92,
P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 to provide coverage {o elected and certain
appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is mandatory for such
individuals with vesting occurring after one year of membership.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Significant Legislation

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, ¢. 78 enacted certain changes in the
operations and benefit provisions of the TPAF and the PERS systems.

Pension Plan Designh Changes

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78, new members of TPAF and PERS,
hired on or after June 28, 2011, will need 30 years of creditable service and have
attained the age of 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a
reduction of 1/4 of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65. New
members will be eligible for a service retirement benefit at age 65.

Funding Changes

tUnder the new legislation, the methodology for calculating the unfunded accrued
liability payment portion of the employer's annual pension contribution to the
PERS, and TPAF. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) will be
amortized for each plan over an open-ended 30 year period and paid in level
dollars. Beginning with the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation (July 1, 2018 for
PFRS), the UAAL will be amortized over a closed 30 year period until the
remaining period reaches 20, when the amortization period wili revert to an open-
ended 20 year period.

COLA Suspension

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries are suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions The vesting and benefit provisions of PERS
are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All
benefits vest after ten years of service, except for post-retirement healthcare
benefits that vest after 25 years of service.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three
years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are
entitied to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.
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Contribution_Regquirements The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A
and N.J.S.A 1866, and requires contributions by active members and
contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be
amended by State of New Jersey legislation.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for
cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement
medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing
employer of TPAF (i.e., the State of new Jersey makes the employer contribution
on behalf of public school districts.

PERS Contribution Requirements

Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
June 30, Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
2022 $ 1,524,885.00 100.00% $ 1,524,885.00
2021 1,373,352.00 100.00% 1,373,352.00
2020 1,209,359.00 100.00% 1,208,359.00

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022, 2021 and 2020, the State of New
Jersey contributed $14,789,713.00, $9,878,123.00 and $7,626,441.00,
respectively to the TPAF pension system on behalf of the District.

In accordance with N.J.5.9. 18A:66-66 during the years ended June 30, 2022,
2021 and 2020, the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District $2,959,070.65,
$2,892,639.22 and $2,873,686.93, respectively for the employer's share of social
security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries.
This amount has been included in the basic financial statements, and the
governmental fund statements and schedules as a revenue and expenditure in
accordance with GASB 68.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2022, the District reported a liability of $15,425,069.00 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2021, and the tofal pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,
2020, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2021, The District's proportion of the
net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the District's
proportion was 0.1302078280 percent, which was an increase of 0.0046671224
percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Disfrict recognized pension benefit of
$1,618,467.00 in the district-wide financial statements. This pension benefit was
based on the pension plans June 30, 2021 measurement date.

At June 30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflow of
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 3 243,273.00
Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments 80,334.00

Changes in proportion and differences
between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 1,299,336.00

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,616,582.00

3

Deferred
Inflow of
Resources

110,425.00
5,491,425.00

4,063,369.00

77,209.00

$ 323952500 $ 9.742,428.00

The $1,616,582.00 reported as deferred outfiows of resources related to
pensions resulting from school district contributions subsequent to the
measurement date (i.e., for the school year ending June 30, 2022, the plan
measurement date is June 30, 2021) will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023.
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(CONTINUED}

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Year Ended
June 30, Amount

2022 ($3,395,219.60)

2023 (2,354,272.60)

2024 (1,527,443.60)

2025 {1,087,493.60)

2026 244,944.40
($8,119,485.00)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2021 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020, which rolled forward to
June 30, 2021. These actuarial valuations used the following assumptions:

Infiation rate;

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 2.00%-6.00%
Based on Years of Service
Thereafter 3.00%-7.00%

Based on Years of Service
investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-
Median Income Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males
and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base
year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based
on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table
with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the
Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment
for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from
the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based
on Scale MP-2020.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
{CONTINUED}

Public Employees Retirement System {PERS) (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30,
2018.

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at June 30, 2021) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investment and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term
expected rate of refurn was determined using a building block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined {o produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included in
PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 8.09%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.71%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.96%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.30%
Real Estate Assets 3.00% 9.15%
Real Estate 8.00% 7.40%
High Yield 2.00% 3.75%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.60%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 1.68%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 0.95%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.35%
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Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) {Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of
June 30, 2021. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
member contribution rates and that contributions from employers and the
nonemployer contributing entity will be based on 100% of the actuarially
determined contributions for the State employer and 100% of actuarially
determined contributions for the local empioyers.

Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied
to all projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability as of June 30, 2021, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed
above as well as what the collective net pension liability would be if it was
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
District's proportionate share
of the pension liability $21,005,816.00 $15,425,069.00 $10,689,014.00

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS). The report may be obtained at State of New Jersey
Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295 by
visiting http:.//www_state.nj.usftreasury/pensions.
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be
funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these local
participating employers are considered to be in a special funding situation as defined
by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing
entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute directly to the plan
(except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or
deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local
participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local
participating employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing
entities’ total proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the
local participating employer.

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the District
recognized at June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Net Pension Liability:

Districts proportionate share -0-
State’s proportionate share
associated with the District $163,368,560

$163,368,560

The net pension lability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pensicn
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2020 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2021. The net
pension liability associated with the District was based on a projection of the District's
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined.
At June 30, 2021, the proportion of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the
District was .3398188651% which was a decrease of .0017608919 percent from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized on-behalf pension
expense and revenue of $3,844,134.00 in the government-wide financial statements
for contributions provided by the State. This pension expense and revenue was
based on the pension plans June 30, 2021 measurement date.
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) {(Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2021 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020, which was rolled forward
to June 30, 2021. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to ail periods in the measurement:

Infiation rate:

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.55%-4.45%
Based on Years of Service
Thereafter 2.75%-5.65%

Based on Years of Service

investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Mortality Rate

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-
Median Income Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and
85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on
the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table
with a 114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Disability mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled
Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010
on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30,
2018.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at June 30, 2021) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries.
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
{expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and infiation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of refurn by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2021 are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 8.09%
Non-U.8. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.71%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.96%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.30%
Real Estate Assets 3.00% 9.15%
Real Estate 8.00% 7.40%
High Yield 2.00% 3.75%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.60%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 1.68%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 0.95%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.35%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of
June 30, 2021. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be based
on 100% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State. Based on those
assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all
proiected benefit payments in determining the total pension liability.
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability is zero,
consideration of potential changes in the discount rate is not applicabie to the
District.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Teachers
Public and Annuity Fund (TPAF). The report may be obtained at State of New
Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey
08625-0295 by visiting http://www_state.nj. us/treasury/pensions
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The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-
employer defined benefit OPEB plan, which is administered on a pay-as-you-go
basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the
criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporiing for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The State Health
Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription
drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered
dependents of local education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are
legally required to be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with
N.J.S. A 52:14-17.32f. Therefore, these local participating employers are
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement
No. 75 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. According
to N.J.S.A 52,14-17.32f, the State provides employer-paid coverage to
employees who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years
or more of service credit in, or retires on a disability pension from, one or more of
the foliowing plans: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public
Employees' Retirement System (PERS), the Police and Firemen Retirement
System (PFRS), or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78,
P.L, 2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have
less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay
a percentage of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they
retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the
premium for which the retiree will be responsible will be determined based on the
retiree's annual retirement benefit and level of coverage.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan Membership
covered by the benefit terms consisted of the following:

Active Plan Members 213,901
inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Currently Receiving Benefits 150,427

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Not Yet Receiving Benefits -0-
Total Plan Members 364,328
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Total Non-Emplover OPEB Liability

The portion of the total Non-Employer OPEB Liability that was associated with
the District at June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Total OPEB Liability:

District's Proportionate Share $-0-
State's Proportionate Share associated
with the District 174,349,306

$174,349,306

The total Non-Employer OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2021 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, which was rolled forward to June 30,
2021.

The total Non-Employer OPEB Liability was determined separately based on
actual data of the District.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized on-behalf post-
employment expense and revenue of $13,778,221.00 in the government-wide
financial statements for contributions provided by the State. This expense and
revenue was based on the plans June 30, 2021 measurement date.

At June 30, 2021, the District's proportion was 0.2905451275 percent, which was
an increase of .0092243013 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

The State, a Non-Employer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal
obligation to make employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS,
TPAF/ABP and PFRS participants. The District's proportionate share percentage
determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No. 75 is zero
percent. Consequently, the District did not recognize any portion of the collective
Non-Employer OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position.
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Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability that was associated with the District as of
June 30, 2021 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020,
which was rolled forward to June 30, 2021. The actuarial assumptions vary for
each plan member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in.
This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods in the measurement:

June 30, 2021

TPAF/ABP PERS PERS
inflation — 2.5%
Salary Increases
Through 2026 1.55-4.45%* 2.00-6.00%* 3.25-15.25%*
Thereafter 2.75-5.65%* 3.00-7.00%*  Not Applicable

*. Based on Years of Service

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy "Teachers”
(TPAF/ABP)," General" (PERS), and "Safety" (PFRS) classification headcount-
weighted mortality fable with fully generational mortality improvement projections
from the central year using Scale MP-2021. Postretirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 "General" classification headcount-weighted mortality
table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central
year using Scale MP-2021. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010
"General" classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale
MP-2021 for current disables retirees. Future disabled retirees was based on the
Pub-2010 “"Safety" (PFRS), "General" (PERS), and "Teachers" (TPAF/ABP)
classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational
mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on
the results of actuarial experience studies for the periods July 1, 2015 - June 30,
2018, July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2018, and July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018 for TPAF,
PERS and PFRS, respectively.
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Township of Montgomery School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.65% and decreases
to a 4.50% long-term trend rate after seven years. For post-65 medical benefits,
the actual fully insured Medicare Advantage trend rates for fiscal year 2022
through 2023 are reflected. For PPO the trend is initially 5.74% in fiscal year
2024, increasing to 12.93% in fiscal year 2025 and decreases to 4.50% after 11
years. For HMO the trend is initially 6.01% in fiscal year 2024, increasing to
15.23% in fiscal year 2025 and decreases to 4.5% after 11 years. For
prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 6.75% and decreases to a
4.50% long-term trend rate after seven years. For the Medicare Part B
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.00%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 was 2.16% and 2.21%
respectively. This represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the
Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond
rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount
rate is set at the municipal bond rate.
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NOTE 7: ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability

Shown below are details regarding The total OPEB non-employer Liability
associated with the District for the measurement period from June 30, 2020 to
June 30, 2021.

Balance at 6/30/20 $190,763,547
Changes for the year:;
Service cost $10,978,147
Interest 4,622,805
Changes of Benefit Terms (185,574)
Differences between expected
and actual experience (28,454,551)
Changes in assumptions or
other inputs 172,009
Membership Contributions 115,626
Benefit payments - Net (3,562,703)
Net changes {16,414,241)
Balance at 6/30/21 $174,349,306

Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the fotal Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2021, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed
above as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be if it was
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage
point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2021

1.00% At Discount 1.00%
Decrease (1.16%) Rate (2.16%) Increase (3.16%)
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $208,843,098 $174,349,306 $147,187,515

73



Township of Montgomery School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
dJune 30, 2022

NOTE 7: ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB_Liability to Changes in
Healthcare Trends

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2021, calculated using the healthcare trend rate as
disclosed above as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be
if it was calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1-percentage point lower
or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2021

1.00% Healthcare Cost 1.00%
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Empioyer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $141,136,330 $174,349,306 $218,951,879

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Non-Employer OPEB Liability

At June 30, 2021, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to retired school employee’s Non-Employer OPEB
Liability associated with the District from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected
and actual experience $ 26,282,384 % 52,325,327
Changes of assumptions 29,576,149 18,706,056
Changes in proportion 14,016,785
$ 69,876,318 $ 71,031,383
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Township of Montgomery School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

ACCOUNTING AND _ FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Non-Employer OPEB Liability (Continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the State’s proportionate share of the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated with the District will be recognized in OPEB expense
as follows:

Measurement
Period Ended
June 30, Amount
2022 ($631,767)
2023 ($631,767)
2024 ($631,767)
2025 ($631,767)
2026 $361,031
Total
Thereafter $1,009,972

($1,156,065)

In accordance with GASBS No. 75, the District's proportionate share of school
retirees QPEB is zero. There is no recognition of the ailocation of proportionate
share of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources in the
financial statements.

State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employee Plan Information

The New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits issues publicly available
reports on the OPEB plan. Those reports may be obtained by writing to the
Division of Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295 or on
their website at:

hitp://Iwww.state. nj. usftreasury/pensions/aasb-notices-opeb.shtml

LITIGATION

The Board attorney's letter advises that there is no litigation, pending litigation,
claims, contingent liabilities, unasserted claims or assessments or statutory
violations which involve the Board of Education and which might materially affect
the Board's financial position.
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NOTE 10:

Township of Montgomery School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2022

CONTINGENCIES

The District receives financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the
U.S. Government in the form of grants. Entitlement to the funds is generally
conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of the funds for eligible
purposes. The State and Federal grants received and expended in the 2021-
2022 fiscal year were subject to the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB
Circular 15-08 which mandates that grant revenues and expenditures be audited
in conjunction with the District's annual audit if expenditures for federal or state
programs exceed $750,000. Findings and questioned costs, if any, relative to
federal and state financial assistance programs are discussed in the Single Audit
Section, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. In addition, all grants and
cost reimbursements are subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantors. The District's management does not believe any such audit would
result in material amounts of disallowed costs.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions, injuries to employees; and
natural disasters. The District maintains commercial coverage covering each of
those risks of loss. The administration believes such coverage is sufficient to
preclude any significant uninsured losses to the District. Settled claims have not
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has
elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under
the “Benefit Reimbursement Method”. Under this plan, the District is required to
reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed
quarterly for amounts due to the State. The following table is a summary of
District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for
benefits paid and the combined ending balance of the District's Unemployment
Compensation Claims Payable and Unemployment Restricted Fund Balance for
the current and previous two years:

Fiscal Iinterest  Board &Employee  Amount Ending
Year Earned Contributions  Reimbursed Balance

2021-22 $ 1,107.54 § 240,608.30 $ 169,988.44 $ 855,400.72

2020-21 1,187.34 236,763.71 184,866.04 783,673.32
2019-20 5,125.69 169,031.81 123,871.90 730,588.31

76



NOTE 10:

NOTE 11:

Township of Montgomery School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2022

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Selfdnsurance Plans The District has established medical, prescription and
dental benefit self-insurance plans (the Plans). Transactions related to the Plans
are accounted for in the General Fund.

Horizon-BCBSNJ administers broker payment on the District's behalf to the
commissioned broker of the Plans, Brown & Brown Benefit Advisors. At June 30,
2022, total unpaid claims, including an estimate of claims that have been
incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) to the administrative agent, tfotaled
$1,190,200.00 for the Plans. The IBNR liability has been calculated by the
District based on actual enroliment, the statute of limitations in reporting a claim,
and actual claims reported.

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED — GAAP BASIS

General Fund - Of the $24,031,286.46 in General Fund Balance at June 30,
2022, $652,255.34 has been assigned for year-end encumbrances;
$6,718,278.22 has been restricted in the Capital Reserve Account;
$3,000,000.00 has been restricted as maintenance reserve; $274,983.39 has
been restricted as Emergency Reserve; $1,691.96 has been assigned for
designated for subsequent year's expenditures; $3,809,656.00 has been
restricted as excess surplus resuiting from the year ended June 30, 2021;
$3,799,489.76 has been restricted as excess surplus resulting from the year
ended June 30, 2022; $732,883.19 has been restricted for unemployment claims
and $5,042,048.60 is unassigned.
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NOTE 12:

Township of Montgomery School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS ~ BUDGETARY BASIS

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004,¢.73 (§1701),
the designation for restricted fund balance - excess surplus is a required
calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts
are required to reserve General Fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if
they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance
in their subsequent years’ budget. Based on the calculation, the Montgomery
School District has $3,799,489.76 excess fund balance resulting from the year
ended June 30, 2022,

General Fund Expenditures

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 $109,914,094 64
Less:
On-behalf TPAF Pension and Social Security Reimbursement

and assets acquired under installment purchases 21,410,704.65
Adjusted General Fund Expenditures 88,503,389.99
Excess Surplus Percentage 4.00%
4% of Adjusted 2021-22 General Fund Expenditures 3,540,135.60
Add: Allowable Adjustments 2.063,451.00
Maximum Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balance 5,603,586.60
Actual Unassigned/Undesignated Fund Balance 9,403,076.36
Excess Surpius $3,799,489.76
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Township of Montgqomery School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was originally established by the Township of
Montgomery School District by inclusion of $100.00 on September 25, 2000, for
the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent
fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and
its activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in
the district's approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of
the LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in the capital
reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for
taxes. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express
approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget
time or by a special guestion at one of the four special elections authorized
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. BA:23A-14.1(g), the balance
in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted
capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the year ending June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2021 $5,663,677.66
increased by:
Board resolution dated 06/14/2022 $1,700,000.00
Interest 4,600.56
1,704,600.56

$7,268,278.22
Decreased by:
Utilized in adopted budget 550,000.00
Ending balance, June 30, 2022 $6,718,278.22
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Township of Montgomery School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

MAINTENANCE RESERVE

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7G-13, a Maintenance reserve account was
established by the District. The Maintenance reserve account is maintained in
the general fund.

A district board of education or board of school estimate, as appropriate, may
increase the balance in the maintenance reserve account by appropriating funds
in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes.

A district board of education or board of school estimate, as appropriate, may by
resolution withdraw such funds from the maintenance reserve account and
appropriate into the required maintenance account lines at budget time or any
time during the year for use on required maintenance activities for a school
facility as reported in the comprehensive maintenance plan pursuant to N.J.A.C.
B6A:26A-4.

The district board of education shall ensure that the maintenance reserve
account balance does not, at any time, exceed four percent of the replacement
cost of the school district’s school facilities for the current year. If the account
exceeds this maximum amount at June 30, the district board of education shall
reserve and designate such excess in the subsequent year's budget.

The activity of the maintenance reserve for the year ending June 30, 2022 is as
follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2021 $2,500,000.00

Increased by:

Board resolution dated 06/14/2022 600,000.00

$3,100,000.00

Decreased by:

Utilized in adopted budget 100,000.00

Ending balance, June 30, 2022 $3,000,000.00
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NOTE 16:

Township of Montgomery School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

EMERGENCY RESERVE

An emergency reserve was established by the Township of Montgomery School
District for the accumulation of funds for use as emergency expenditures in
subsequent fiscal years. The emergency reserve account is maintained in the
general fund and its activity is inciuded in the general fund annual budget. The
emergency reserve account is used to fund unanticipated general fund current
expense costs and may be established to supplement the reserve in the district’s
annual budget or through a transfer by board resolution at year end of any
unanticipated revenue and unexpended line item appropriation amounts in
accordance with N.J.S. A 18A:7F-41.

The activity of the emergency reserve for the year ending June 30, 2022 is as
follows:

Balance June 30, 2021 $274,983.27
Increased by:

Interest earned 0.12
Balance June 30, 2022 $274,983.39
DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The District offers its employees a choice of the deferred compensation plans
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457. The
plans permit participants fo defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Since the District
does not have any property or rights fo the plan assets and no fiduciary
relationship exists between the District and the deferred compensation plan, the
plan assets are not included in the District’s financial statements as of June 30,
2022.
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NOTE 18:

NOTE 19:

Township of Montqomery School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

INVENTORY

Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2022 consisted of the following:

Food and Supplies $21,301.48

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required
by the Single Audit Act amendments of 1996) is the difference between market
value and cost of the commodities at the date of purchase and has been included
as an item of non-operating revenue in the financial statements.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30,
2022:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $414,406.43
Special Revenue Fund $182,442.53
Capital Projects Fund 240,985.78
Debt Service Fund 9,021.88
$423,428.31 $423,428.31

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that short-term loans
were disbursed and payments between funds were received.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the financial
statement date through February 17, 2023, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. Based upon this evaluation, the District
has determined that no subsequent events needed to be disclosed.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

84




05'988% 05¢LL'LLS 00'850'8L$ (00'Lv6'19) 00°000'02%
Lo 89°L¥5'99 00'8YG'99 00°8ps'LS 00°000'5L
£0'229'pL AL izeELs's 0Z'8¥2'L2L'8 0Z'LB6'D 00'262'02L'8
LG 9EP'SL By ¥2L'VI0' 00911609 {00’ LP6' 121 00'Z0L'ELE'
pLier'ezlL o8'451'95Z'6 00°165'¥8E'6 (00'ePy'L82) 00'¥E0'999'8
89'c6R'cE ZLgcs'oirs 00°065'v1¥$ (0o052°26%) 00 08 9058
98'Zi6'CLL ¢s 99'€90'220ZLLE 00'155'606'88$ 00°L55'606'88S
(66182 ZL) LO06L L) c0'2LF'8T 00ZL¥'BE
{66'182'2L) LO'08L AL 0C'Ziy'6E Q0'ZLP'6T
T §9'2.9'9800E 00°/81L'282°9 00°48L'294'D
$9'0/0'656C S9°0/0'656'2
06'8LLS 00'9LL's
00'¥S6'C85 L 0D'bg6'eas vl
Q0'854'60Z 00'854°602
00°'SLP'GSH'E 00'SL¥'68H'S
000LL'6 00°041'601 06°000'001 007000001
00°L82'PS0'E 00°'182'PS8'E 00°000'008 00°000'008
00'266'68E" L 00'856'68S" | 00°e56'688'L
00'LEC'SBE 00'180's68 00'Leo'ses
O0'E0Z'£L0'Y 00'€02'LL0°Y 00602 LL0'Y
{00°169'8p1) 00°'t02'696'1 8 oo'zeR’LLL'ES 00z68'Lll'28
{sv'596'061} $SYSG 6L 00'025°049 00°025'0.9
rs I0L'L ¥5 LOL L
(oc2L0'12) 00'Z.0'12 00z Le
£T'898'4S £2°991'c64 00°822'SEL 00'84Z'SEL
96'09¢'y 95000y 00082 00°062
ZL 0% ZLe
00'2.4'062'488 00°2L2'062'18% 00'2LL'062'1L8%
TYNLOY OLTvNId IOV F9and TINIWNONIAY 135and
AONYIEYA ToNI ISHIASNYEL LBDang TYNIDRO
INAT AIANS Jv3A TV
ONMd TvdaNaID
T# 1 TaH

ab=3u 119IHX3

SEOIAOS [RUONEINES [eutissajold paseyding
slayoes) Jo saueles
sweiBold renfal - UCONISU| BLIOKH
Zi-6 SapelD)
§-9 S8pRID
g1 sapRID
uspedilapurs
SieyDes) JO sauees
swelfio:d terbas - uoonisug
‘BENZdXA INGHNEMND
SIUNLIANILIXH

senuaAal 2ol

SBUN0S B8Py - (8101

{(IW3s) WawssInquesy predipsiy
SIN0sS |elapay

SRUUNOE IES - [BlO ],

{p218Bpng-ucy) Juco AIINJBS [BID0S JydL PISINGUISY
{payabpng-uou) soueinsul Angesip we-Bug| jleysq-up
(perebipng-uou) UORNGIALOD uolsud Jvd ), jRYSd-uD
{pajabpnyg-uou) sourinsyl A:0pNgIELOs-UoU Jyd L eyaq- ud
(perelipng UoU) EOIPAL JUBLLAIAI JSCE JYdl JeUSE-U0
ple ajels Jaulo
pe Aeuipiosixs
piy uonepodsuel ] Eolobalen
piy Aunoeg reaucbalen
pie ucnesnpe [eioads eouchae)

1$I2UN0S EIS

SRUNGCS (BI0-SBNUDABI [RIOL

SNOBUE||SOSIW PSIILLSSINN
SNOBURBISILL PAOLISAL SBYIO
Sya7 JBYI0 Woy uoning
SIENPIAIPL L0 uon |
spuny dnasas |eldeo uc pBLIED 1SAIBI
spuny aamsa) Acusbiiawe uo palLes Jselsiy
Aag| xe} 2007

1$821N0S [E907

SINNINIY

85



26°886'02% 20°'£95'v5zs 002rS'6428 {00°825 PES) 00°'040'0L£8
av'ser ¥ LPLOL 00’85 01 0085 0L
08'6L0'64 0ZTr6'L8 Q0'220'1L0% {ooreze'se) Q0°0§E'8EL
o9l yesov'al 00°ZE6'E01 000082 o0'lel'19l
S8 E60'Y G08L9'8L. 00'ZLLCEL 00°/85 LS 0052 1'699
08'928" 1 02'920'85 00'€8E°08 {oo'soz's) 00'LOS'ES
SLE8Y STBPY'S 00°ZE1'0% oo LeL'2y) 00'806'LZ
Ov'eBZ'e 09'er6'6re 00'£22'269 00'2L5'8L 00'899'ELS
_AS'L66'/2E £6'066'TEL'D D§'Zr6'09e’e {og'916'46) 00'658'85¢'9
00'€2Z's 00°689'sL 00'Z16'9E 00l 00°/68'0L
L8°61Z'€0L £9°28Z'¢89 0%'206'98L 05°652'2 00 L¥T'6LL
07808121 02°8LO'OEY'S 00'8¢5'155'S {00 281's01) 06612289’
Zre 85'ZLL'8 00'gil'e 006118
Zre 85°ZLL'8 00'611'8 00518
00°25E 00°0Pe 1L 0026614 00°/SE 00°0¥E'LL
00°28¢ 00°OVC L 00265 14 00'/se 000%2'LL
LP 08’y £0'41L6°6G8Z ) 06°LEL'EEE L (05018 /6] 00Zrl LEY L
PE'BL'S 90’6516 00286l Q076" PL
007009 00°009 00000
£ZLLB'ZE 12'988'007 0§'261°cer {oszse'ez) 00°05.2'E9r
0e'als’s 045868 00°286'c88 {00'g58'29) 00'0¥8'L56
LE'E0P' 0Ly $6'1L0°EP6'0T £6'SLPELYOZ (VAT 00°€0.v96'9Z
05'829'¢ 0%'165'| 00022 L 00'022'2
8ECLE'6L ZEEO0'0PL 00'ELS 001 (o0g8e9e) 00'868'361
LL80L'9L2 p6Zre'olLe £LTGY'TE0'L £4'992'1E 00'98L'L0D'L
T AT LL°928'0by 002668y (00'8£5'801) 00’ LL5'16S
Z8'650'02% 80°0H0'9% 00001 '9Z$ {00°005'L%) C0'009' 428
WIIOT OL TvNIE TWNiov 1Foana ETNIRONTIAY 59ana
JONVIHYA PYNIA /SUAISNYHL LISANG TYNIDIHO
ZHITIHS

al"On LIFIHXE

aun ped - ssqgesip jooyosaid [ejof
sanddns jeiguag
UoDNUISU J0) Salees JaLYl0
SIayoea} JO s3leeg

au ped - sa|Iesip 1ouIsald

WsEne elof
salddns jessuesy
UoIONASUL IO} Salleles Jeyld
slayoeal Jo seuees

wsnny

IS0 BIN0SAS (210,
soddns [eIausn
UORINIISUI 104 SOLBIES JRUI0)
sIeyses) Jo sauejes

JBIUE BOINOSALIO] B0IN0SEY

‘sjuswredus Aojpne [ejo ]
$a2IMIeS [euoissejoud pasBYIINg
sjusutiedun Acypny

‘sjuBULBEWL |BNSIA (B)CL
slayoesy jo sauBRS
‘suawedwt [ensip

sogigesp eSenbuey Jopue Buwies) |e30)
saiddns |eIsusD)
{saues NOG-00%) SeaSS paseyaInd BUD
LORINNSUY) Jo) Salees 180
siayoes; JO salRES

selqesip abenbue| Jospue Buliesy

woleonpa ensds

swerbod ieinbal jejo}

s1oalgo 18w
SHOOGIXS |
sa||ddns |eisuss)
$80095 paseudind Jsulo
SOOIALSS RDIULDE] PasBUDIN
uogANASUS pangLaspun - swelBold seinfey

86



20°€LS 140 LS G0'08L'601'8E$ eLepZ'LLLBES (18'Z60'Lcag) 00°9€.'820'0F8
ZL'L96'peZ 80°9Z0'€L2'E 02 {86°2E8'S (o8 28L'6.1) 00'§2L'LLLE
091 oF 108 L1 Q0'€08'L1 00'82% L 00'SZE 0L
0oL oF1L08'L1 CO'TO8'Ll 00’82yl 00'4E°0L
v0 L00'E0L 96'991'S¥0' L 00°9LL'8PL"s Oo'rey'ie) 00'0/9'691'L
0SZPLC 05 ZEE' LY 00°080° 00°00% 00°085 €
00°ZeL 0L o0'ee8'zLL 00's20'€eL 00'GEG'S 00'000'8L L
1608228 80 J2l'sel 00'956'581 00°LL6'pY 00'196'01 4
£9°106'L8 LE12'8, SO'ELL's6L (00's66'1.L) 00'801L°298
09'199'vt Ob'$ys 8Ly Q0°G0Z'€25 00'S0Z'€25
00299 Y 006659l o0Lez e 00°182':Z
0£'802°2 06°L25'S01 00°984'L0L {00026's) 00°90L'¢L )
oLy 00's58'1L 00008} {(6o'oos'a) coooL'y
05'Pis’ L8 05'€18'¥SE 00'885'26¢ 0002y LL 00'8EL LSS
[P 97 ¥E6 98P 00°£82'805 00°85.'6 00°525 86
68°800°¢ LLvele 00'eLL'S 00'BZE 00'SFY'S
sgece'sl §L°02) b8 00'015'208 00°0cH's 00°080'c6¥
YL'Cr6'66 0’845 052 L 0Z'025'ore’L (08'62y 69 00'056'6L5' L
©.°096'C Y2 i8v's 00°'8Fy'9 00'8br'e
8£°1.85'26 060 LYE'L 0Z'ZL00¥E' L {og-ezt's9L) 00°205'605'L
66 LbL 0eE l0'zeg'688's 00'08.'622'6 (oo'gzs 0ZL) 06'808'9ve6
$9'81€°0 98'€0E'Z0L 00'$28'801 00'820'EY 00°000's9
gcilee ¥L8L8'0L 00'96L'L1 (oo vos°2) 0000002
88°C 8ver'Le 00°L2¥'L6 00" L2v'ey 00°000'st
Z0'vLa'eZ 86°208 01 00 LB vPE o'st 00’248 bre
91'086'CL PR6EP'ER 007027 16 00'882'6 oo'zat'ss
9g'ce8'v LS #1'£98'TETS 00° 168 LPZS {ooesl'ss) 00°069'95Z%
L0V OL 1vNig TNV I39and SINSWONTAY T30afd
ADNYIEVA TN /SYIASNYHL 1390Nng TYNIDIHO
BLERVEERER)
THFII3RS

Wb LIGIHXD

uogINLSUl - [BIeL
sweiBord jpuononisus JSYOo |ejo L

LOROMISU - SwesBold [RUORDNIASLE JBYIO (B0 )
salees
wonangsyl - swelbo:d [euoiongsyl BUO

sonB|Yse palosuods [ooyos [BloL
s10a(qo JBUl0
s[eLale pue sa||ddng
(s819% 0DG-00¢) S50IAISS paseyng
sayees

Saejyle palosuods (0oyag

SBNIAIOR JBINUNSOD PRLOSUOMS [00DS 18I0
sieelge Jsuo
sleusiziy pue saiddng
(sauas 00S-00E) SaNIAISS paseydIng
ssueRg

'SBIIIALDR JBINDIINOCI PRIOSLCTS |O0USS

uoteshpa jenbugig (2JoL
saddns [erauss
SIayoEs) JO SSueeS

‘uoneanpa [enbulig

[EIPSLIBL/S|INS DISeq jeloL
sayddns [eleusn)
siayoes) Jo ssueeg

‘[erpawai/sIys disey

ucnecnpa [gads (g0l

UGHONASUI S0y [B10]
S80IAISS [BUOHEONDT-[BUOISSSI0N] PESEUDIN
SIBUIES) JO SBUEES

BORINASU| B - UANLBINPS jedads

aun} |in - SeilliigesIp [0oysaId (Bj0]
LOIONNSYI 1O SBUEES U0
SIayoEs] JO SauReS

DL [N - SHIGESID 100UDSeId

87



T A 95515 iR LS 00'Z8l'S0L'28 60'Z06 [828 00088'L18'1$
ZLLevaL 89265 LG¥ DO'Pa0'8ZS 06 L5 ab 00228611
2E°6LL S g9'z26'TLY' | 00'869°245'1 00°5Pe'682 00's50'8€L'L
£Lesh 2t 6111 0FE" AT z6'852'0F 00'Ze6'9pE’L
91255 66 26£'6) &L PPE'5L (sz'0) 00'5¥6'61
L9'6ZR'sr 61°998'202 00°96L'L42 00'162'66 00'S08'LG3
aL'psLE Loese'ell’l LhioL'eLLl (e9'¥£0'65) 002rLSLL')
LE'90T LI 69'866'655 & 00'S6Z LLLL {o0'ceg's} 00'880°€8L' L
90806 ¥a'158'8T 60°Z26'L (oc'ose't) 00'Z.1'68
00'009°1 bo'00L'L 00'004'2 00'002'2
00°082'c 00'60L'v62 00'c88° 262 (0o 2pe'D) 00°082'508
STEIL'ET G4 /06'S5E8 00°00L'988 00pLL'e D0'996'658
op'seL’l 00'8eL's (00622 000082
00'24'L ao'ses’l {oo'sLy) 00’0052
P.L'848'890"L 9z LEL'EPLT 00'9L0ZLEE (00 L8e'88E) 00°/88'055'
vz L8/'651 ¥.'0/9'682 Q0 Vb Sh {©0'002'02) 00'PLY'GoF
£V 408°22 159208 00'¥sL'sL {oo'004'9) 00 PSE'BL
LO'ELLPESG 8£'€89'088 00 L68'GLY"L (oo'evr'eie) 00'Sta'8zL L
00y 00'9St 8y 00°000°05 00°000'05

00'€L9'0E 00'€L9'08 00'asa'el 0062411
00'266'S 0eEL'Ls 00's2L' LY 00'sZL LY
¥ 80'10E8 99'9Z8'¥58% 00°€32'551'LE (00528 L98) 00'082'€22' 18

TNLOVOL YN WNIOY IF5ane SINIRONINY 1395and
FONVIHVA TYNIL /SYBJSNYHL 139009 IYNIDINO
<202 0F AN AYAA VO8I
[ERNTERER]
[ZXEEN

»170, LIGIHX3

S2DIAISS BAXS-S)USpPN]S SanIes Noddns Jayo el

SROIAISS [euonEINpe- jeuoISsajold paseydng
ssueRsg
SENAIAS BIXS-SRIDPN)S §30108s Poddns saui0y

SBAAIBS PAJR|BI-SIUBPNLS - $3IJSS oddns 1auyjo |ejop

sielajew pue saddng
SEOIASS |BUClesnpa- [BUOISSa0sd paseyding
sauRes

'SI0IAIDS PBJB|BI-SIUSPNES - Saonas Hoddns ey

SBOISS UYRay - (210
sleyew pue salddng
(sau38 00G-00P) 5908 paseudind JAIO
SAOIAISS [BOILYDD | R [BUQISSB)0I PaseLInd
sayees

1SE0IMISS YHBDH

%I0M SBOIAISS |BID0S PUB SOUBPUSHE - |EJOL

$AOIIDG [EIUYITL D [BUOISSHICIH PISBUDIN
1}JOM STOIAIAS [RI00S PUE S0UBPUSHY

uononisy |Blog

810 - uolEn |

slels 8y apisina paddesipuey Joj S|00UDS Sieaud Jo) Uoiin g
alels S Ui paddedipuel) 10} Siooyss Sjeald Joj uein

$100128 ABp Je[nBal pUB SSD OF UoINL
fEroads - |00UIS [BUOREIOA AUNOD 0} YORINL
lenBay - (00Y9S {BUONEIoA ASUNOT) O} LGN
|e0ads-2iels aul UMMM SY3T SRUIQ 0 uomn g
JUORIRISU|
‘salnpuadxs paNqLasIpUn

88



8089 1S Zvegl'elas 06'068'2688 05'GEE'ELS 00'691'6.288
0Z'6i2'e 68'92L'L0L $8°'100'801 g°0) 00'Z00°801
06'008°L 00°00¢'1 00'008°L
68185 SL°80¥'S 00'000's 00°000'9
£0°288'6 Z9'196'292 SYBYE'LLL ge'68s'st 00°888'89L
Y8l LY 8L 089 1LY §C°60L LS SZ'eug'ey 00° 18’60k
0G'8S6'E 00 PyE'LE 00'00E'SE (00008’ 00'008'88
69°S8S'E 18°0.6'g) 00°95¢'12Z 00'882'L 00'0£0°02
LO'G00'p 66'¥L9'S 00'028's {oo'veL's) 00'vLL'SL
00°005'EL 00 00b 00°006°EL {oo'oos'ss) 00°00%'08
$0°0 96'vPS 1Y 00°GPS' LY 00°SHS LY
S 189'LL 08ZES'gYl ST y¥Z'vaL (52e50'8) 00'86Z'ZLL
08’0 oLeyL'Lze 00'brL LT 00°081'44 00°¥56'61
25'669'68 80'5Z2 129l 05'pZL 2068°L (ov'eso'se) 00'gLL'2es’L
29088 £e'8¥e 02 0026982 00°259'9C
80'689'21 Z8BL0'S 0065841 00°559°LE
L8'850'0) £L'085' 20 00°879' LS 00'oPe'g 00°000'sY
00'eLL 00'098's oo'eeL's 00'eeT 00°008'S
88'66.'\2 Zi'gee's9e 00891 182 (oo'zze's) 00'58b'06Z
[A A A) 8L'EPS'CIV' L 09°028'608'L {or'osg'ee) 00°180'6248'L
62'982'8¢ 12'5P9'g88 1 DG'ZE6'086' 1 {o0zae'2L1) COPLO'PED'E
00'szh 00'209 00°€6. 00'e6L
65'PEE'9 LrG9L's 00'00L's1 00°001'$L
00°'GLE'0L 00'51L6'0L (0008¢) 00'%92'L1
00°096'L 00 L¥E'ee 00°£02'8¢ {oo'sez's) 00TV i
00000, 00°000') 08°000's
(0o'608°'201) 00'608°€01
8y'86E'L 25068 LIl 00’6851 (oo-zsi) 00°695'65L
2Z'665'018 8L 046'F0L' LS 00'vZE'SLLLS (00'980't+$) 00059'614'L8

TVNLOV GL TWNid

HONVIHYA

S# i S

ab=3u LIFIHX3

V0LV

13549
TN

SINIWANTNY
fSY34SNYHL L39aNg

02 08 3NN JIANT JVIA TV
NN TYEINTD

Taodng
NSO

LOLSIT T00HDS AMAWODINOIN 40 dIHSNAMOL

AfIq1] [00UDS/BIPS (2UONIEINES (2101

steusiew pue sayddng
(Sa18s 00§-00F} SB3NBG SEUIN JBWD
SPAIASS |EDILYID] PUR [RUOISSSjoId PasEYDiNG
sauejeg

:Aleiq)) (couss/epauwl [euoneanpd

$I|AIBS [RUONONIISUL JO JUBLIBAOIdNS IO |

sainjpuadxd snosue|aosiy
sieyslew pue so|ddng
seninas paseyaind Byi0
sE0HuaS paseyaind BY0
$B3AISS |BUCHRONPS |BU0ISSB)0)d paseying
SAYOEOD AVRISHT F UIBIN 'SICIeDEL JO saleles
JUBISISSE |edjap pue 2)8109s JO Siteeg
Je18 jpunissajad Jalo jo salzeles
uoonisyl Jo Josiaedng jo Aejes
1S301USS [BUORINLSUI jO Judtsaoidu

SaniAes [RIoads - sjuapnis - $301Ales poddns BUYIo Bl L

sjeizelew pue sayddng
(seues 00S-00p) S80IMIBE BSBYDING JaLID
$30IAISS |BUOEINPA [BUOISSBI0Id paseUOINg
18Y)C - S3LBES
SIBISISSE [2OUS[D PUE BUEISOSS JO soueeS
4els [euoissajoud 18Uy Jo saueles

se0Es |R19ads - sjuspnys - sasiaas poddas JSUlD

1ejnBat-sjapnis - $a0lAas Yoddns g0 o)

£10a{go Jaylo
sjeuael) pue sa)ddng
$80IAles paseyaund sBsUj0
SEOIAISS [201UY2R) pUR jeuoissajo.d paseydind Jeyd
SAOIAIG [BUCHEINPT ~ JBUCISS3I0Id POSBYIN
SeleRS JOUNG
SRIBJSISSE [ROUSID DUB |BIBBIDSS JO SAlBeS
Lers feuoissayoxd Jayo Jo sauees
JenBal-suapn)s ~ Seoiales poddns sauyi0

8¢9



69'998'2% LEPB6'SOL LS 00'E5R° LI LS (00°0GY' 248} 00'6$2'062'13

00°115'8l R C0'1L99'CL 000582
29y 8L'189'LL 00'989'£1 00°656'L aoegs'st
29°G68'L ££°600'1Z 00'598'22 00'ovL'e 00'$22'0L
80'80¥'Z zZ6'era'et 00'Z52'6t {0o'sre's) 00°00L'vZ
8L'165'2 28'19¢'v02 00'¢£56'602 090K 2L 00 Lr5 vE L
#3°606'L 98'0.6'688 D0'est' 288 {00'608'PoL} 00°56.4'150'L
62'77T'8et 94'202'L6S'S Lerersel’e L8'668 551 00'625' 648
1072288 66'690'L 00°169'6 00 L69'6
£2'801'81 LI1E80°22 00°0bb sy 00°008'2 00°0be'2Y
8E265'1E Z9Zy8LlL 00'SBE'EY (oosze'y) 00°0ZZ'ey
GL9ZL0L £6°96Y'L6L 89'264'929 99° 01’0 00'$70'88L
9z LL8' Gg'Z0b'88. £1°086'628 {48'88p) 00'6LY'0E8
0%'Le L0l Ob'98e'LL8'L 00'0ZL'9L6'L o0'9le'es 00'v05'088' |
oL0l6'28 Y ELZ'89G L 00°081°128') 00'526 9p1 0059 iYL
601 SOgLY'ET 00'£89'¢2 (o0 288'1) 0000062
0o'ove'L Q0'6ZE's 00'LIS L (ooszi's) 00°000'L 3
Q0°0tt 00°0LY {00085t} 00000
LE'989'L £2°019'y 00°LLE'S 00'z08 00'SLP'S
GLoLs'L 5266l '681 00'91L'06Y 00916 LY 00°008 'S5+
96619 v0'08L')L 00°00¥'T (o0oe'L) 00000y
66'996'LZ LG'250°0LL 00°128'281 00'989'2 00'5e6'681
00'0LL 00196t L o0 LeL'2t 60' g8 0000E' L1

00°000'9L 00°000'9)L 00°000'0L

(00°000'08) 00'000'0¢
18°040'6L £1'594'V6 00'9LL'SEL {aovzz'es) 00°000°05
8g'as FAN 00'529'6¥L 00°048'¥L) 00'SSL VLS
v ic2'6a Gl oBb'se.L CINARSE: 61'€L9 00'160'v28
15212y 8Y28CC 00'0SP'9 00'0s%'0
8eLpL'LE Zo'9L6'zT 00'859'08 00°08L 00'806'6Y
00'808'vZ 00'048'98 00'648°L9 {o0'95¥'Z2) 00'6E8'EY
AN 23'¥08'Li 00°508' L4 00'508'L1
0Z'58L'2L 08'9E0's L 0020842 (oogea'zz) 00'obr'0g
AL 06°525'099% 61°089'080% 6L°L10'SPS 00'¢L9's5L88
TLOV OL TN TWNLOY FERTOE] SININONZAY TI39ans
FONVINVA TN /5¥3ASNVYL 13Dang TYNIDIHO
S EE

ab3u 118IMXA

SS0IAISS [BIUSD 1101

sainjipuadx3a snosue|easiy
FSEYDINS 93887 U0 JSala
sleusely pue seyddng
{sauss 00s-00y) Se0NBs paseydind osuy
$3BIAIBS [EUYDS) paseydIng
sayees
$EOYUBS [BIUSD

UCITBISIUILUPE [0DS Sa0lAIes poddns [ej0)

S108{00 BUIO

sjenelew pue saiddng

saoues paseudind lBUy0

HEIS [BUOISSJ014 JOUIO JO SalBES

SIUBISISSE [BOUS0 pUB (BIIElSI0AS JO SalReS

sledpuyd weisissessiediuud jo sauejes
‘UOEGSILILDe [COLoS saolaes Hoddng

uoessiuipe [eousb seopes Poddns g0t

sa9) pue sanp diysiaquisly 309
sanypuadxe snodue||esIN
sa|ddns BueawyBuiue) ssnoy-ul 305
salddng jeseusas)
s80jasas paseyund JaliQ
saoines peseyaind 1ayl0 3048
suoyds|sysuoiedunuiuo)
saoes [Buossayoud paseyaund Jsyl0
saojnag Sunssubug einioaliyony
S80) Jpny
saojuss efian
souBRS

woBeNSiUiLUIpE [esausl saoues Yoddng

sea1aues Bullsely Jess |BUoLonISu; IR0

sjgusjew pue sayddng

{Sa148S N0S-00Y) SBOWIDG eseyng JByl0

SeaMas |BUOGRINDPE BUCISsajoud paseuDd

1SISSY 29US0 PUE [BUERIISE JO SSLRES

HEIG [BUDISSSIOI JOUID JO Sauees

uanonisut Jo siosiaedng Jo sallees
‘saoiasas Sujuies) yess [euononsug

90



3166l 'S/.8 822LLviY'O8 P ILE'EYZ % {00'522'88) Y26l 86T L8
S8'8Z6 42 Gl '956'SE 00'G8R'£84 00'588'291
00'052 00°052 00052
gv'Z68 zgzel 00'62L 0'szs
19gLi've £L°026'8 00'5¥0'ee og'sro’ss
04'496'C 0E°/68'921 00'698'6ZL 00'598°6Z 4
ESELI'96 Lr'e8l'e9e 00°261'89% (0022628} 00'vEL'LOS
10°228'08 656'229'CE 00°'000°ES GO'000'es
LZ0LY'09 6.88L'¢8 00BLL'ERL (00'502'92) 00'ves 661
LE'9Ze'L 69'L6E'VSE 00°3L0'292 06 or.'892
yZ0zR'42¢E 020EL'E0L'S PP 066'08r'S Preze LOb'S
69'Sk0 LEPSEY 000005 £0'00G'S
05'656'0F 05'€62'652'L 00'ESZ'008 L (00°2vL'vL) 00000922
00°LL9WE 00 LEv'v6e 00'PS0'eEY 00'¥50'sG L 00°000°08%
£L'e82'2L 1068845 Py elo'69 (00°000's2) P eLIvPL
00°004'168 00°001'168 00°004L'9L8
62'T58'C4 Lo Lbt's6L 00°00€'802 00'000'64L
PE'B99'EL 09°Z6L'60¥ 00°ZeR'ZZY 00'Z85'L8E
00°000'Z 0064112 00'64L'82 00'000's4
599t} §€'0./6'062 00°20L'L82 00°261'L82
¥8'5E9'S 90°042'848'L 00'904°'588'L (00'gee'zL) 00°LLL 256"
¥5'9E0'L2E or'aya'sos 005889811 00'098°981L
£€'66L S 19vPEvEL 00°0CL'891 00°001 99
BO'SEY'0L2Z e EL LS 00'G45' 128 00°08%'L2Y
£6'258'0L A¥'298'085 00012 LES 00°0LZ'L6S
6L 909ELE LE'60L'988 0L 9L6'6PS 0L'BLLEES 0oLl oL
¥6'Lp0'ST 8026501 00°009'GE 06'c09'9l
00t 00'986°L 00°000°2 00°000'2
G6'GLL20 S0°L62'682 00°€L¥°2SE 00644884 00'vE0's6L
06'829' 12t 0Z'742'988 04'¢06'651% 01°000'95% 00'805'C0LS
TNIAY S TN T™WNIOV T35ang SINGRONIAY T5dna
IONVIEVA TuNId JSUIISNYEL 1390N8 TYNISING
TE0E BE ANNT UIUNS "YaA Tvasid
N ERVEEREDR]
HTHIHS

o= LIBIHX3

580103 e(d 10 SoURUSIUIEW ¥ Suoneado {810,
Aunsag jejo),

s1elaQ B0
saddng [eisuasy
S3OIIST |EDIUYDB) PUE [BuISSa)eid paseysing
sallejeg
Anoag

spunoss) Jo deaydn pue aled [elog

sapddng jessuen
$30|AI8G BOUBUSIUIEW pue ‘Neday ‘Guiuea)
souRES

spunoss) j0 daaudn g aien

wz(d jo FoUBUBIUEW B SUONEIBT0 JBLYIO [BJ0L

810890 JAIO
(Ayio1n00(3} ABssuz
{seo) |eunjen} ABJauy
sa|ddns [elauag
BOUBSU]
sanaes fuadad paseunind JBU10
$8IIMDS W pue Jledar ‘Buesd
SOOIALES [EDIULDS} PUEB JRUOISSajold peseyding
SORIY [BUIDMISU-LUCH JO sSUees
souees

Juert 0 asueusluEW g suojelado BYI0

SBM|I0.] JOCYDS 1O} FHUSUSIUIRL palinbal (€101

saddng |eiauany
S$&hM8s SouRURUBW pue ledal ‘Buues)
salees

SA[IVE) [00USS IO} SoUBUSUIRW PaIINbeyY

ABojoUL; UOJJRWILE UcleLSiuWpE 2101

sielsseN pue se|ddng
Sa0IAIeg PaseYdInd J8UI0
SENAIBS [BDIIYDD; PasEYSINg
SOUEES
ABOOUYDD) LOLEWIONI LOBBNSIURLEPY

91



goreocle’ize)

EERR A A

{sg'0.0'656'2) G9'0/0'656'2

{00°942's) Q0'9LL'G

(00'v58'c8S8'P1) 00'y56'E8G L

(00°85.'g02} CO'6SL'SOZ

{00 0Lp'gak'e} 60'GLY'S5P'E
L9'629'81L 668l ZleBl 09'sta'ses 6LS 00'avL'8Zes 09'901°202'618
YT YZ'ZLezor 00°001'608 {00°006'¢6) 00°000'c08

v i52'8 oE'ZoL Yol 00'000'ELL 00°000'L 00°000'081L
08'65+'92 08'80E' LIPS 09'39F €085 | 00'0v9'ELS 09°828'686 11
ov'vB 09'G1E'8LG 00 00¥'8LS {00"000't01) 00'00'229
Le'SZE' YL B 2902 00°000'SE 00'000'sE
00'S6L'EE 00'S88'PZS'E 00°080'8rS'L 00'080'8¥G' L
6.881'16 SZ'L18'204' 00°000'002'L 00°000'00Z°L
SLOGYT SZ'6Pia 60008’y 000088l
Z5'066'¥6Z 8'aG9'6PE'S 00'609'7b8's 00'€25'288 00'980'2LE'S
000074 000092 00'000'y 00000
9Z°/66'LZ) Z4908'c0V 00'20.L'Les 00'Z95'081 00 008’ L
69'9L6'L Leess't 00'005'e 00'00s'e
00°cL0' L ao'00L o0l oo 28¥%) 00°002'2
9e'ehs s ro'ezs'e6s 00°0L2'8V6 00°0/2'e¥ 00°060'508
By'B6Y'L Z5°109'6Z 00104 LE 0a'koL'LE 00°000'0L
000002 00°000'2 00°000'Z
05'vEL'L 06°106'v8 00'889'CL 00'9ES'ZY 00°000'08
9e'el8'2L y9'61.'984 00'682'6582 (00'LOg'OPL) 00°068'666
00°000's 000002 00°000's 60°000'S
Sg'esy §1'L55°08¢ 00°5£0°19¢ 00'880's 00°000'09¢
8EC Z9'508'g8y 00'90¢'98% (oo12a) 00'220'68¢
1898L'9 61281 00'0LL'SE (0o088'v2) 00'Ga0°’0%
ZL'98G'L 88°659'0p [V rarad 00'9FZ'ZY
ZrLLG'L 8G°0L9' 261 00'8ZZ'661 (oo'gea's) 00°992' 102
£y LEYLP'LEe 00'8LE L2 00'985'69 00°¢88'LgL
£oZEL'L LEPYe'Era'L 00'/£0°059'1 0°5¥Z LLL 00 LeL'zes"
L0 LPO'ES B6'SLE'PELS 00°256'46L8 00'bL8'1EE 00'€80'941%

TYNLEIV OLTUNIE TYNLIOY T35and SINTRONTAY 135009
ADNVRIVA TYNH /SYAISNYHL 139GNnd TYNIDNEHO
RO OS0ND 9v3A 1905k
ONd TvganNED
EREERE

ub=Du LIFHXE

{pa1aBpng-uou) SUGENGLALOD ALINJSS (BIS0S 4| DASINGUISY
{(parelpng-uou) soueinsu) Agesip uusl-Budl 4vd L Jeyagq-uQ
{psi@bBpng-ucu) ucingiue uoisuad vd | Heudsq-uQ
{pajalipng-uou) asuRInsy| AICINAUILOS-UOU d JiByad- uo
(pajebpng uou} (eoipsw JusWaJyst 1sod Jyd i JBueq-uQ

Sjysusq pajeds(iEun (210 L

syeuaq asfodua JBEO
JUSLUBSINGUIRI O |
Slysusg yyesH
uciEsUadWIod S,UBUNIOM
SUOHNAUIUOS UMSUaY
SHd - SUOKRGUIUCD USLIBINST JBHO
SUONGUILED ALMDas (81205
aoueznsu) dnougy

s)jausy payeasileun

s80IMBS UofeLodSUERI JUSDIS [ej0]

spelo BUI0

sayddns uonenodsuel

sa1ddns eieuaD

uoljelodsues - sa01es paseyoind 2SIy
SYSLO®S053 -

(syuspnis uonegnpa [eroads) $adnes PaLORIUCY
sjuswesife ol

(sjuspnis uoneonpa feloads) $S0IASS pajaeiuoD
sjusweabe Juief - (jvoyos

PUE SLUCY USSMISq) S80IAISS palDRIKIoD
sJopusA - ([O0UDS pue

BLUOL UBIMIA] UBLY JBYJ0) SEAIMSS PRORIUOD

SI0puUsA - {|OOYIS PUR AWGY UDIMBY) SB0IASS PalOBNLDT)

yag Jepey -(sjusuiied Jo nay Ul pre) SedBS PeIU0D

(spaufed Jo na|| U} ple) SaoIAas paloRIu0D

$38NY [D0YIS - SIUBWAR ] B5UdINd 958a7

$8oI09s JIRW pue nedas ‘BuesD

"AIBG [BI)UUDE | PUB 'j0)d PESEUIING JBWD
(100UDS PUE BLOY USAMBY UBL] JSI0)

uonepodsues jidnd o) ssueRS
|etoads « {OtDs pUR SWOU UBaMiBq)

uopeuodsuey ndnd Jo; sajees
Jenbal - ((0oUDs pue SLuoy Usamag)

ueepodsues idnd o) seuees

SBPIE [BUONIRIISUIUIOU O SalIBES

'$90IM8s uonepodsues Juapng

92



S0'88T'668'98 Z0'696'20L'TS rosle'ess've) {oa'a00erzs) (PO'6LEDPS PS)
{povez'oizal) 9 ¥E0'P1LE 601 $0°'0/8'L69'¢6 0D°000'8YE Y0 0.8'6FF 6
00'€6¢9 00'269°29% 00'686'89% 00'8be'LS (Y TINT)
SE200'P8E GLPe5'a8s 05°991'286 0% ZHE'98 00'vZ8 v68
0068’98 20°0/8'sE 00°568'125 (00°000'281) 00'658 804
(60049002 00°049'002
00'558'851 00'508'851 00°558'85¢
00'551'482 00'698'5. 60'000'¢9E {00'000°281) 00°000'058
GE°408°20¢ GLp6L'ES) 0§'190'19% 09'ZrE'S.2 00'814's81
00°6LP'2 00'sip's CO'SLY'L
L0'00% 66°66.'6 00'g0g'0L 0O'00L'0)
00°452'38 00°26.'88 00°L64'88
00'206'902 00°208'60Z 00'208'902
5.'e88 §Z'008's 00°'i88'e (0ogLe's) Q0’00021
00'00g'e 00°00%'9 00°005°9
0L'E0L 06'962'91 00'000'23 0000041
BY'BLL'R Lg'gee'sr 00'ver' LS (00'ars've) 00°co028
00'000°2 £0'000'2 06'000°2
§ToLl'e SZaLL'e gzalL's
SZ0LE'PS SZOLE'PS {62'205'84) 00'6LL2L
00052 00052 00052
(se'611'219'01) 6'8€8'Z29Z 604 L YRTORAS 05°'809°L5] PO'606'L8Y'Z6
(cceco'e8o’/18) vre0L 5L LIS LY G P 80P EGE 18'208'600'1$ PO'€LL'BST 26%

TYNLOY QL T¥NId
FONYRIVA

6# LIIHS
wb=Ou LIBIHXE

LIV

Taoang
TN

SENISNANTNY
ISHIASNYHL L3900

4390049
TYNIORIO

<€¢02 08 INNF Q30N JY3A TvOsSId

sainypuadxe (Japun) a0
sanuanal jo (fouaisysp) $saox

TWLOL ONVHD ONA TYHINTO
SI00URS JSHBYD 0} SPUn JO JBJSUBI]
‘ST00HOS YA LYYHD

AYILAO TYLIEYD TYLOL

"AIBS 'ISU0D pue uclisinboe semive) g0 L

{pe1ebpng-ucu) SIOENUOD) SSBUIING JUSLI(EISUF JapuUf) paINboy §jessy
Buipuny was vo a3jAI8S 1qap 10) JUBLISSASSY

SE0IAIBS UOIOTASUOYD)
SOOIAIBS UOIIDNIISUOD pue uomsmboR sa|

wawdinbs jejop
welbosd [puoonuisy] JByi0 pue palosuodg-jooyog
Z4-6 SpRID
lewadg - sasng |cousg
JenBiay - sasng [O0YSS
Wwawdinbe 15U UoU - uoneHCGSUR] JUBPMS - SEunipuadxe paInqlEsIpUn
spunolf Jo deaydn pue sren - samypuadxa pashquisipun
SROIAIBS [BID0ISNY) - Sempipuadd painailsipun
A3l10e) 100UDS 10} SaueUsiuew panbay - uatdinba pngUstPUN
U|WPY 10040§ - saurppuadxd panguIspu
sjuspng-'Alag Hoddng - saunjpuadxe painGUsipun
LORONISUL - sadnypusdxe panGgLISIPUN
Juewdinbl

anesay repdes o) psodad sl
AVLENG TWidVYD

ISNDDGE INFHUND - STUNLIONSLXE TVLOL

sanypuadxa PAINAUISIPUN |&j0L

93



ov'982'LE0'PES

(00'8£6'195)

o vee'e6s ves

09'085'€09°S
96'169'L
9.°681'66L°C
00'959'608°s
BLE88'ZEL
BEE86'V.C
00°000'000'S
Ze8L2'8LL'S
¥£'65Z'259%
90°886 060 LS 9y vee'Ze8'vEs ob-988'sEY'LLS (oG 000'8¥ZS) ov'oesEvs Z1$
Yv'S8l 8z 22 PU'SBL P8C 28 P a8l 9 22
$0'856'960'L 20'6£9'802°2 (ro'slE'882'D) (0e'co0'8+2) (#0'61€°0pS'8)
00°0.9'062 00°049'002
00'0.8'002 00'049'002S
TOLOV OL VNI LoV 95ang SINIWAONINY 135ang
ADNVINYA NI /SYIASNYYL 139008 NSO
(] : WIETE
RGERVEERER]
TNOAH0S NOSIMTINOS X
RN

ob=0n LIGIHXA

{dvvD) spund [BlULtiuIeA0s) Jod souereg pung

s15eq Jyvo uo paziubosal Jou syuswhed pIe 238i8 PUR [RIBpa4 1SE

SIUBWIBIRS PUR JUBWILIBACD O} UOLBIEOU0DaY

saur|eq pun) paubisseun

sainypuadxe sJesk Juanbasgns jo) paieubisep ENRS/VY D44 - paubissy

sainjpuadxe s 234 Jusnbasqns 105 pejeubisap - paubissy
1294 JuaLND - Shiding 5830X8 - peloi)sey

sainjpuadxe s ead jusnbasqas 1o} pejeulisep - srydins $590%3 - palosaY

aAlasal swicdwaun - paoinsay
anassl Aouebiews - paplsey
BAI9$8] SOUBUSIUIBLI - PAYOLISSY
anlasas [ejiden - paplsoy
S30ULIQUINDUS pua-seah - paubissy
‘uonenydessy

0g aunp ‘saoue(eg pund

L Anp ‘seoleleq pund

sasn Bupueuy Jaylo pue sainipuadxd (Japun) JeA0 SSOMOS
Buoueuy JB3YI0 DUE SBRUBASE JO (AOUDIONYAP) S590X5

(sesn) secunos Buisueuy Jawio Ejo

(pa1ebBpng-uoN) SINBIIDD DSBUDING jusww| ISyl

94



REVENUES:
State sources
Federal sources
Other sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction;

Salaries of teachers
Oither salaries
Purchased professional & fechnical services
Other purchased services
Tuition
General supplies
Textbooks

Total instruction

Support services:
Other salaries
Purchased professional & technical services
Personal services ~ employee benefits
Other purchased services
Supplies and materials
Student aclivities
Scholarships

Tota) support services
Total expenditures
ExcessiiDeficiency} of Revenues Over/
{under} Expenditures and Other
Financing Sources/{lses)
Fund Balance, July 1
Fund Balance, June 3¢
Recapiluiation of Balance:
Restricted:
Schofarships
Student Activilies

Total Fund Balance

EXHIBIT "C-2"

TOWNSHIP QF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRI
DGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR FISCAL RS END: UNE 30, 2022
ORIGINAL BUDGET TRANSFERS/ FINAL VARIANCE
BUDGEY AMENDMENTS BUDGET ACTUAL El O ACTY
$65,093.00 $15,371.00 $80,464.00 $187,383.00 $106,995.00
1,109,251.00 4,105,457 .61 5,214,708.91 2,156,206,06 {3,058,502.85)
1,328,815.71 1.328,819.71 789,651.24 (539,188.47)
$1,174,344,00 $5,449,648.62 $6,623,992.62 $3,133,240.30 ($3,480,752.32)
$260,979.00 $661,915.93 $922,804.93 $318,558.86 3604,336.07
16,016.00 16,016.00 16,016.00
32,892.00 108,373.00 141,265.00 108,624.23 32,640.77
378,662.61 378,662.61 26,485.92 352,176,689
735,231.00 146,322.00 882,553.00 876,861.97 5,691.03
43,029.00 66598237 709,011.37 197,901.93 511,108.44
7.5609.00 2,395.00 9,904.00 9,053.00 851.00
1.080,840.00 1.879,666.91 3,060,308.91 1,553,601.91 1,5086,805.00
713,930.00 713,930.00 155,140.63 558,789.47
27,385.00 627,512.00 654,907.00 373,558,50 281,360.50
208,038.75 208,032.76 37,552.87 170,485.88
66,309.00 387,800.00 454,109.00 17358172 280,527.28
304,385,109 304,385.19 98,129.67 206,255.52
1,193,886.17 1,193,886.17 712,998.62 480,889.55
34.428.60 34,428.60 5,050.00 29,378.60
§3.704.00 3,489,981.71 3,663,685.71 1,556,007.91 2,007,677,80
$1,174,344.00 $5,440,648.62 $6,623,992.62 3,109,509.82 $3,514,482.80
23,730.48 (23.730.48)
486,537.867
$510,268.15
$29,378.60
480,889,565
$510,268.15
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TOWNSH|P OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISCN SCHEDULE

BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
EFOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Scources/inflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary) "revenues” from the
budgetary comparison schedules

Difference - budget to GAAP

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized as
expenditures, and related revenue is recognized.

State aid payment recognized for GAAP stalements in
the current year, previously recognized for budgetary
purposes.

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the
subsequent year.

Total revenues as reported on the statement of

revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
- governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts {budgetary basis) "total outflows” from the

budgetary comparison schedules

Difference - budget to GAAP

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered
but not received are reported in the year the order is
placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the
supplies are received for financial purposes

Total expenditures as reporied on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
- governmental funds.

96

EXHIBIT "C-3"

SPECIAL
GENERAL REVENUE
FUND FUND
$112,022,063.66 $3,133,240.30

118,013.33
490,271.00

(561,538.00)

$111,950,796.66

$3,251,253.63

$109,914,004.64 $3,109,509.82
118,013.33
$109,914,004.64 $3,227,623.16




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART lii
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SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION (GASB 68)

98




"DIQEIBAR BWO0s8aq AsU) Sk pauodal aq (1M Siesk [eusllippY "pual) Jeak ua) MOYS 0} PApUBiUL St 8NPaYOS (8JON

99

%EE0L %8481 00'967'88L'6 690'6Z¥'SL %0828.020€4°0 L1202
%ZE 8 %P8 122 00'0.¥'822'6 90’2702 %950.L0¥SS2L 0 0202
%.2°9S %SG92GT 00°/6.'098'8 ¥91'20v'2e %P0088ZEFEL 0 6102
%09'€S %6G'882 00'125'092'8 ¥8.'8£8'€Z %0086£.0LZL'0 8L0Z
%0L PP %0t 0pE 00'6Z8'LEE'8 Lge'19e'82 %6¥LYSE8LTL 0 FARIA
%L 0¥ %99'0Ey 00'809°LLY'8 9E0'016'9 %J89EEL2ETL0 aLoz
%26 LY %S LLE 00'€6.4'€80'8 £11'259'GC %LLGPOLEYLL 0 G102
%802 %01 '0L2 00°/98'62.'L 8Lg'cL8'0z %GL0908YLLL0 41074
%ZL'8¥ %¥8TLE 00'295'1£5'L ¢ 868'8pS'0Z %.1GLE8L5/0L°0 €102
Iiqert uoistad fi0JAeg 85A0[dLT TioIked 188Sy) MIIGEn 0t aunf
210, 8y} jo -paJan0s) St 4o safo|dw-palano) uoisuad 18N ayy UoISUad J&N oyl Jo Buipusz
obejusniod e se ofejueniad & se $J011810 jo aiByg uonodoud a1eq
Uolsod 19N (1@ssy) Aupgen gjeuoipodaoid $,10UISI(] ususInsesy
Aejonply uejd uoIsuad 19N 8y} 4o sjousig
uolpodoid
sjouisiq

SHVIA dNIN 1SV
WILSAS INFWNTHILAY SIIACTdWS DlNEnd
ALITIEYIT NOISNZd L3N IHL 40 JYVHS 21LYNOILHOdOHd S.LOIY1SIO JHL 40 3TNAIHOS
10141810 TOOHDS AYINODLNOW 40 dIHSNMOL

wb="la LIdHHX3



%809l
%0991
%881
%ratl
%8BS 1
%S5 €L
%e6'Cl
%SL°CE
%0611

jlolkeg
aakoduz
-PRIDAOD)
jo ebejusniad &
$e SuoNguUIUo)

wC o LIGIHXE

‘alqeiEAR aW00aq Aoy} sB paLiodal aq (|Im SIEaA [BUOIPRY "Pual) JESA us} MOYS O} papualll S 2inpsyos BIeN

00'822'690'01 -0 285919t 285'gle’L
00'95¥'881L°6 -0 G88'rTS'L G88'resL
00°0/¥'822'6 -0~ zse'ele’L zse'ele’L
00°/6.'998'8 -Q- £6e'602°t £ge'60Z't
00'125'092'8 -0 L6Z'V0Z'| L6Z'70T' |
00°gz8'Lee's -0- G19'82L°L g.9'8ZL'tL
00'809'2LP'8 -0- evL's60’L £vL'Ge0’L
00'€6.'€80°8 -0 LLy'286 1.9'286
$ 00°498'¢eL'L $ -0- $ 0£0'61L6 $ 0€0'616
fiolkeg (8885%4) SUGHNGUIGOD UOHRGUIUC)
aofodw fousioysg paJinbay palinbay
-PRIBACD uoRnNGgUILOD Renjoenuon Ajienjoenuon
$,JoLsIC) 8y} 0} uopelRY

Ul SUOHNQLIUOY

SHVIA ININ LSV
WILSAS INAWTMILFY S33A0 14N O 1aNd
SNOILNEIINOD S. 10141810 FHL 40 IMNAIHDS
1014181 TOOHOS AHIWODLINOW 40 diHSNMOL

[A4VY4
120T
0coe
6L02
gloc
L1102
810¢
SLoe
viog

"O¢ aunp
Buipu3
I2a A |BISI4

100



%es6E
%0oVE
%G6'9¢
%6¥'9C
%ly'Se
%ELEL
%LL8Z
%reEe
%3LEe

{iqer] uoisuay
[E30L 8} jo
abejusolag & se
Uosod jeN
Aeionpid ueid

£ LIGIHXE

%9g°LOY
%99'695
%Z2£'999
%96 L8S
%1G°LLE
%9L° 494
%8¥'ce9
%1 L¥S
%8P LLS

[[OHE safoldwy
~PRIDACT) SJAMISIC
auy) jo abejusosad
B SB jousia sy}
ilm pajeioosse Aujger
uoisuad 18N
€104 oy} jo aleyg
sjeuoiodold s91E18

[oTRed s8A0dIT
-peIsA0D S| Jo
abejuanied e se
(19ssy) Aliqer

uoIsUsd JoN B JO

aleys sjeuoodold
$jousi

"B|ge|EAR W025q Aay) Se papodal g M sieak [BUONIPPY DUSL JEBA USE MOLS 03 PAPUSILI §1 B|NPaYS BON

00'688'€89° 0V 00'095'898'E0L -0-
00655 P8Y'6E 00°091L°926'v22 -0
00°0S2'1L14E 00°485'981 01 -0~
00°06Z'09¥'9E 00'02L'Z8LZIE -0-
00'672'868'5¢ 00'646'649'L2C -0-
00'Lgo’leg'ee 00°185'2£5'85¢C -0~
00 LY reR'ZE 00'826'9€6'L0Z -0
0o'sLL'epe'eE 00'6.1'669'0LL -0
00'SPa'SlE'EE $ 00265682691 $ “0-
foRed RN ToSS) AIIqer]
sefo|dwg-paIsaon GiIM palenosse uolsuad 1oN 8y}
spousig (1essv) Ayiger uoisusd 10 aiBYS
18N oy jo sielg gjeuoodold
sjpuogodold seiBlIg syaasg

SdvdA ININ LSy

%15988186£L°0
%0L5L6L5LPE°0
%Sr0sS8bZre 0
%0981 ¥SEEE 0
%9C6898.82E°C
%ErTEPPOBZL0
%Z26964668ZE0
%8LEBL090EE°0
%8P9LTS0LEE0

18s8y) Allliger
uoisuad 1aN auj Jo
uolpodoid
SIUISICT

£202
0z0T
8102
8L0z
4102
gioT
Gi0z
¥L02
£L0¢

_Qm suUnpQ
Buipus
sjeq
juBWBINSeay

101



EXHIBIT "L..4"

TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART i
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

Change in benefit terms:
None

Change in assumptions:

The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension
liability in their respective accounting periods:

Long-Term
Measurement Expected Actuarial
Date Ending Discount Rate of Experience
June 30, Rate Return Study Period
2021 7.00% 7.00% 07/01/14-06/30/18
2020 7.00% 7.00% 07/01/14-06/30/18
2019 6.28% 7.00% 07/01/14-086/30/18
2018 5.66% 7.00% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2017 5.00% 7.00% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2016 3.98% 7.65% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2015 4.90% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11
2014 5.39% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11
2013 5.55% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11
TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF)
Change in benefit terms:
None
Change in assumptions:
The foliowing assumptions were used in calculating the net pension
liability in their respective accounting periods:
Long-Term
Measurement Expected Actuarial
Date Ending Discount Rate of Experience
June 30, Rate Return Study Period
2021 7.00% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2020 5.40% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2019 5.60% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2018 4.86% 7.00% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2017 4.25% 7.00% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2016 3.22% 7.65% 07/01/12-086/30/15
2015 4.13% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
2014 4.68% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
2013 4.95% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART IV
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SCHEDULE RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN
PENSIONS (GASB 75)
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EXHIBIT "M-2"

TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART 1V
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Change in benefit terms:

The implementation of Chapter 44 Plan and contribution strategy affecting pre-Medicare
future and current retirees and dependents who enroll in the New Jersey Educator Health
Plan option upon retirement and were not grandfathered under Chapter 78 (fewer than 20
years of service as of July 1, 2011) is reflected for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022
as a Plan change.

Change in assumptions:;
The following assumptions were used in calculating the net OPEB liability
in their respective accounting periods:

Measurement
Date Ending Discount
June 30, Rate
2021 2.16%
2020 2.21%
2019 3.50%
2018 3.87%
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt
service or capital projects.
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EXHIBIT "E-1.1"

TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECE|PTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 2021 ADDITIONS DELETIONS JUNE 30, 2022
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 45592308 § 737,063.09 $ 712,99662 $ 480,889.55
Total assets $ 45592308 § 737,963.09 § 71299662 $ 480,889.55
FUND BALANCE:
Due student groups:
High school activities 3 300,908.01 $ 43584147 % 43464173 § 302,107.75
Upper middie activities 48,827.01 178,134.48 169,550.41 57,411.08
Lower middle activities 54,230.74 25,800.01 14,572.33 65,458.42
Village elementary activities 42,086.61 5,528.51 1,544.31 46,070.81
Orchard hill elementary activities 9,870.71 6,725.52 8,754.74 9,841.49
Athletic activities 85,933.10 85,933.10
Total fund balance $ 45592308 % 737,963.08 § 712,99662 §$ 480,889.55
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues and financing sources:
Interest on Investmenis
Grants

Total revenues and financing sources
Expenditures and financing uses:
Purchased professional and technical services
Construction services
Operating Transfers Out-Debt Service Fund
Total expenditures and Transfers
Net change in fund balances
Fund balance - beginning - budgetary basis

Fund balance - ending - budgetary basis

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:

Fund balance - budgetary basis

Alyssa grant - unearned revenue
Add: Encumbrances

Fund balance - GAAP basis (exhibit B-1)

116

EXHIBIT "F-2"

9,021.88
267,839.00

276,860.88

54,000.00
852,944 .41
9,021.88

1,015,966.29

(739,105.41)

1,098,277.13

367,171.72

357,171.72

(152,824.35)
602,369.67

806,717.04




TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds
Total revermies

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased professional & technical services
Construction services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) or revenues over
(under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Project Number

Grant Date

Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized

Bonds Issued

SCC Amount

Local Share

Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion
Original target completion date
Revised target completion dale

PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

3 &

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND

HIGH SCHOOL IMPROVEMENTS
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Prior Periods

1,67078765 §

Current Year

Totals

1,670,787.65

EXHIBIT "F-2a"

Revised
Authorized
Cost

1,670,787.65

1,670,76765 §

1,670,787.65

1

1,670,787.65

103,419.13 §

1,608,633.50

103,419.13
1,508,633.50

109,326.15
1,561,461.50

1,612,05263 §

1,612,052.63

1.670,787.65

58,735.02 §

58,735.02

3320-030-15-2000

51372016
1,044,475.00
1,044,475.00

1,044,475.00
626,312.65
1,670,787.65

59.96%
96%
9/1/2017
6/30/2019
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND

PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

UPPER MIDDLE SCHOOL IMPROVEMENTS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds
Other Sources
Capital Outlay Transfer
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased professional & technical services
Construction services

Eguipment

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) or revenues over
(under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Project Number

Grant Date

Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized

Bonds Issued

SCC Amount

Local Share

Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion
Criginal target completion date
Revised target completion date

EXHIBIT "F-2b"

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost

$ 559270857 § 5,592 708.57 5,502,706 57

338,895.13 338,895.13 338,895.13

250,000.00 250,000.00 250,000.00

8 65,181,601.70 § 6,181,601.70 6,181,601.70

$ 39363306 % 54,000.00 447,633.06 450,072.80

4,790,950.06 721,989.00 5,512,948.068 5,5616,169.90

215,358.33 215,358.33 215,359.00

$ 5,309,05045 § 775,989.00 6,175,939.45 6,181,601.70
% 781651258 § (775,988.00) 5,662.25

3320-070-15-1000

5/3/2016
4,073,080.00
4,073,080.00

4,073,080.00
2,108,521.70
6,181,601.70

51.77%
100%
92017
11/156/2019
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL BISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND

PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

LOWER MIDDLE SCHOOL IMPROVEMENTS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased professional & technical services
Construction services

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) or revenues over
(under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Project Number

Grant Date

Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized

Bonds Issued

SCC Amount

L.ocal Share

Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion
Criginal target completion date
Revised target completion date

EXH|BIT “F-2¢"

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost

% 3,060,65266 § $ 3,060,55266 $ 3,960,552.66
$ 3,960,55266 & $ 3,060,552.66 ¢ 3,960,552 .66
$ 426,988.44 $ $ 426,988.44 % 457,644.16

3,451,047.06 3,491,047.06 3,502,908.50
% 3.918,035.50 & $ 3,018,035.50 $ 3,960,552.66
$ 42581716 % $ 42.517.16

3320-045-15-1000

5/3/2016
5,226,029.00
5,226,029.00

5,226,029.00
{1,265,476.34)
3,960,552.66

(24.21%)}
99%
912017
9/1/2018
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TOWNSHIF OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND

ORCHARD HItl EL EMENTARY SCHOOQ), IMPROVEMENTS |

PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2029

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased professional & technical services
Construction services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency} or revenues over
{under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Project Number

Granl Date

Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized

Bonds Issued

SCC Amount

Local Share

Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion
Original target completion dale
Revised target completion date

EXHIB|T "F-2d"

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost

$ 312396331 % 3,123,993.31 3,123,993.31
$ 3,123,893.31 $ 3,123,993.31 3,123,883.31
$ 189,081.63 § 189,081.63 204,142.65

2,834,632.83 2,834,632.83 2,919,850.66
$ 3,023,71446 % 3,023,714.46 3,123,083.31
$ 100,278.85 § 100,278.85

3320-080-15-1000

5/3/2016
2,256,480.00
2.256,480.00

2,256,480.00
867,513.31
3,123,983.31

38.45%
97%
9112017
9/1/2019
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND

PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS
ORCHARD HILL EL EMENTARY SCHOOQL IMPROVEMENTS 1|

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCA), YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased professional & technical services
Construction services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Project Number

Grant Date

Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized

Bonds Issued

SCC Amount

Local Share

Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion
Original target completion date
Revised target completion date

© &H

EXHIBIT "F-2e"

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
1,359,005.94 1,359,005.94 § 1,359,005.94
1,359,005.94 1,359,005.94 % 1.359,005.94
370,330.47 370,33047 § 381,577.60
948,603.08 948,693.08 977,428.34
1,319,023.55 1,319,02355 § 1,358,005.84
39,982.39 35,982.39

3320-080-16-1000

5/3/2016

3,228,750.00
3,228,750.00

3,228,750.00
(1,869,744.06)
1,359,005.94

(57.91%)
97%
sfiroY
9/1/2019
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PRQJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND

VILLAGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL IMPROVEMENTS

PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased professional & technical services
Construction services

Equipment

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) or revenues over
(under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Project Number

Grant Date

Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized

Bonds Issued

SCC Amount

Local Share

Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorlzed Cost
Percentage increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion
Original target completion date
Revised target completion date

EXHIBIT "F-2f"

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost

2,794,953.87 % 2,794,953.87 2,794,953.87
279495387 % 2,794 953 87 2,794,953.87
313,33248 % 313,332.48 315,063.90
2,408,508.93 2,408,508.93 2,447 ,631.97
32,258.00

272184141 & 2,721,841 41 2,794, 953.87

7311246 $ 73,112.46

3320-105-15-1000

57320186
2,673,186.00
2,673,186.00

2,673,188.00
121,767.87
2,794,953 .87

4.56%
97%
9/1/2017
9/30/2021
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. PROJECT BALANCE, AND

PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

ALYSSA'S LAW- SECURITY GRANT

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Grants
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Construction services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) or revenues over
{under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Project Number

Grant Date

Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized

Bonds Issued

SCC Amount

Locai Share

Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion
Criginal target compietion date
Revised target completion date

©“ 9

EXHIBIT "F-2q"

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Toials Cost
3 267,830.00 % 267,830.00 § 267,839.00
% 267,830.00 § 26783000 $ 267,839.00
$ 230,95541 § 23085541 § 267,839.00
$ 230,95541 $ 230,05541 3 267,839.00
% 36,883.59 % 36,883.59
22E00118

9/1/21-8/31/22

267,839.00

267,839.00

86%
6/30/2023
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LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-Term schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the long-term
liabilities of the District. This includes obligations under Serial Bonds,
installment Purchase Contracts and Capital Leases.
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)




TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

Contents Page
Financial Trends:

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the district's financial performance and well being have changed over time. J-1to J-4

Revenue Capacity:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the district's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. J-5to J-9

Debt Capacity:
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability to issue
additional debt in the future. J-10t0 J-13

Demographic and Economic information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the district's financial activities take place.  J-14 10 J-15

Cperating Information:
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the district's financial report relates to the services the district
provides and the activities it performs. J-16 fo J-20

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual comprehensive
financial reports (ACFR) for the relevant year.
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES - MONTGOMERY

UNAUDITED
Township of Montgomery Overlapping Rates
Calendar General Total Direct
Year Ended Obligation Schoot Township of Somerset
December 31, Basic Rate (a) Debt Service (b} Tax Rate Montgomery County

2021 $ 2.015 $ 0.179 $ 2.194 $ 0.469 0.482
2020 1.986 0.176 2.162 0.454 0.493
2019 1.968 0.184 2.153 0.453 0.492
2018 1.907 0.196 2.103 0.440 0.482
2017 1.876 0.193 2.089 0.427 0.482
2016 1.857 0.179 2.036 0.410 0.481
2015 1.839 0.162 2.001 0.389 0.470
2014 1.780 0.192 1.982 0.373 0.470
2013 1.758 0.192 1.950 0.360 0.474
2012 1.725 0.1886 1.911 0.351 0.447

Source; District Records and Municipal Tax Collector

{Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudyget year net budget increased

by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

EXHIBIT "J-7"
SHEET #1

Total Direct and
Overlapping
Tax Rate

$ 3.145
3.119
3.008
3.025
2.978
2.927
2.860
2.825
2.784
2709

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitied with the budget and the Net

valuation taxable

(b} Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOI DISTRICT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES - ROCKY HILLE

EXHIBIT "J-7"
SHEET #2

UNAUDITED
Borough of Rocky Hill Overlapping Rates
Calendar General Total Birect Total Direct and
Year Ended Obligation School Borough of Somerset Overlapping
December 31, BasicRate(a) Debt Service () Tax Rate Rocky Hill County Tax Rate
2021 1.344 0.118 $ 1.463 $ 0.429 0.393 $ 2.285
2020 1.415 0.125 1.540 0.439 0.403 2.382
2019 1.469 0.039 1.508 0.435 0.410 2.353
2018 1.334 0.037 1.371 0.4086 0.399 2.176
2017 1.334 0.037 1.371 0.396 0.404 2.171
2016 1.206 0.022 1.318 0.395 0.409 2122
2015 1.204 0.022 1.316 0.371 0.401 2.088
2014 1.312 0.023 1.335 0.373 0.472 2.180
2013 1.262 0.022 1.284 0.378 0.472 2.134
2012 1.206 £.020 1.226 0.377 0.446 2.049

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Coltector
(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

Note: Real property is required to be assessed at some percentage of true value (fair or market value) established by
each county board of taxation. Reassessment occurs when ordered by the County Board of Taxation,
A Reassessment became effective for 2011.

NJSA 18A.7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net
valuation taxabie

{b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.

Note: Real property is required to be assessed at some percentage of true value (fair or market vaiue) established by
each county board of taxation.
Reassessment occurs when ordered by the County Board of Taxation. A Reassessment became effective for 2011,
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TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Fiscal Year Taxes Levied
Ended for the
June 30 Fiscal Year

2022 $ 88,496,956 §
2021 86,794,432
2020 85,690,035
2019 82,870,851
2018 80,913,490
2017 78,878,974
2016 76,320,650
2015 75,161,587
2014 73,866,208
2013 72,429,574

UNAUDITED

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)

Amount

88,496,956
86,794,432
85,690,035
82,870,851
80,913,490
78,878,974
76,320,650
75,161,587
73,866,208
72,429,574

Percentage
of Levy

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

Source: District records inciuding the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

EXHIBIT "J-9"

Collections in
Subsequent Years

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior

to the end of the school year.
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EXHIBIT "J-11"

TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHQOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF NET BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Outstanding Percentage of

Fiscal Year General Net General Actual Taxable

Ended Ohbligation Bonded Debt Value (a) of
June 30 Bonds Qutstanding Property Per Capita (b)
2022 44,497,000 44,497 000 0.89% 3 1,836
2021 48,787,000 49,787,000 1.01% 2,095
2020 56,177,000 56,177,000 1.41% 2,733
2019 61,332,000 61,332,000 1.70% 3,305
2018 66,327,000 66,327,000 1.67% 2,722
2017 71,407,000 71,407,000 1.77% 2,904
2016 78,467,000 78,467,000 1.86% 3,074
2015 63,850,000 63,850,000 1.95% 3,245
2014 67,665,000 67,665,000 2.12% 3,455
2013 71,405,000 71,405,000 2.18% 3,648

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
(a) See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.

(b) Population data can be found in Exhibit NJ J-14.
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EXHIBIT ")-12"

TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

{UNAUDITED)
Estimated Estimated Share
Debt Percentage of Overlapping

Governmenta! Unit Qutstanding Applicable (a} Debt
Bebt repaid with property taxes

Township of Monigomery $ 73,500,427 100% $ 73,500,427

Borough of Rocky Hill 228,000 100% 228,000
Other debt

Somerset County 268,745,720 6.04% 16,225,732
Subiotal, overlapping debt 89,954,159
Township of Montgomery School District Direct Debt 44,497,000 100% 44 497 000
Total direct and overiapping debt $ 134,451,159

Source: Municipal Chief Financial Officer, County Treasurer's Office

Note: Overtapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.

This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses of the district. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the
entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that

every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment.

(a) For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property
values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within
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Year
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012

Source:

TOWNSHIP OF MONTGOMERY SCHOOLE DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

Population {a)

Montgomery

23,502
23,094
23,186
23224
23,181
23,046
22,728
22,494
22,415
22,407

Rocky Hill

736
666
671
676
677
679
681
664
686
684

UNAUDITED

Personal Income (b}

$2,734,652,350
2,624,672,180
2,495,919,340
2,371,119,000
2,203,334,016
2,097,266,275
1,951,982,874
1,827,979,326
1,735,370,221
1,646,388,300

Per Capite
Personal Income {g)

$112,825.00
110,466.00
104,620.00
99,210.00
92,352.00
88,399.00
83,386.00
78,867.00
75,121.00
71,300.00

(a) Population information provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.
(b) Personal income has been estimaied based upon the municipal population and per capita personal income presented.

{c) Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon US Department of Commerce, Bureau of
Economic Analysis.

{d)} Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.
* Information not applicable prior to merger
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EXHIBIT "J-14"

Unemployment Rate {d}
Mentgomery Rocky Hill
4.10% 3.80%
6.00% 6.80%
2.50% 2.20%
3.30% 3.50%
3.30% 3.50%
3.40% 4.00%
4.00% 3.80%
4.40% 3.50%
5.80% 2.40%
5.20% 6.60%
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MONTGOMERY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

EXHIBIT *J-20"

INSURANCE SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED
Company Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible
SAIF Property Bianket Building & Contents-
Replacement Cost Values $ 500,000,000 $ 2,500
SAIF Flood 25,000,000 1,000,000 /
250,000
SAIF Earthquake 25,000,000 5%
SAIF Environmental/Pollution Liability 1,000,000 occ/
25,000,000 agg. 10,000
SAIF General Liability
-Each Occurrence 10,000,000
-General Aggregate 10,000,000
-Personal Injury 10,000,000
-Fire Damage 10,000,000
-Aggregate 10,000,000
SAIF Automotive Coverage 1,000
-Combined Single Limit 10,000,000
-Hired/Non-Owned 10,600,000
-Uninsured & Underinsured 15,000/30,000/5,000
Auto Physical Damage included
SAIF Crime Coverage
-Money & Securities (inside/outside) 50,000 1,000
- Blanket Dishonesty Bond (including
Faithful Performance for Elected Officials) 500,000
SAIF Cyber Liability 16,000
- Third Party Pooi Limit 25,000,000
- Third Party Each Member 2,000,000
- First Party 750,000
SAIF Boiler & Machinery Coverage 100,000,000 2,500
NJUEP Umbrelta Liability Coverage
-Occurrence Limit 30,000,000
-Aggregate Limit 30,000,000
NJSIG Workers Compensation Statutory
Employers' Liability
- Bodily Injury by Accident 3,000,000
- Bodily Injury by Disease - Employee 3,000,000
- Bodily Injury by Disease - Aggregate 3,000,000
NJSIG School Leaders Emors & Omissions
-Each Claim 10,000,000 15,000
-Aggregate 12,000,000
Retroactive Date: July 1, 1986
Surety Bonds
Hanover Insurance - Business Administrator/Board Secretary 415,000
Beazley Syndicate at Lloyds Pollution Liability with Meld 1,000,000 occ/ $25,000
2,000,000 agg.

Source: District Records
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION




EXHIBIT *K-1"

SuprLEE, CLoONEY & ComMPANY

CERTIFIED PuBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789.9300 Fax 908.789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Township of Montgomery School District
County of Somerset

Skillman, New Jersey 08558

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the
financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major
fund of the Township of Montgomery School District (the "District") as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District’s financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 17, 2023.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
District’s control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Township of Montgomery School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal confrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of infernal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC AGCOUNTANTS

A w

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

February 17, 2023
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EXHIBIT "K-2"

SUuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB

CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Township of Montgomery School District
County of Somerset

Skiliman, New Jersey 08558

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Township of Montgomery School District, County of Somerset, State
of New Jersey (the “District”) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the federal OMB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Township of Montgomery
School District’s major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. The District's
major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

in our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States; the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement. Our responsibilities under those
standards, the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our
report.
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SuprLEE, CLOONEY & CoOMPANY

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program. Our audit does not provide a
legal determination of the District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to the District’s federal and state programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement
will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District's compliance with the
requirements of each major federal or state program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance
Supplement, we:

s Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the District's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

¢ Obtain an understanding of the District's internal control over compliance refevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not aliow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness
in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the

requirements of the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance
Supplement. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

AR ¢hm

CERTIFIED' PUBLIC'ACCOUN

A b 4

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

February 17, 2023
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

EXHIBIT “K-8"
Township of Montgomery School District
Notes to the Scheduies of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2022

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance include federal and state activity of the Board of Education,
Township of Montgomery School District. The Board of Education is defined in
Note 1 to the Board’s basic financial statements. All federal and state awards
received directly from the federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards
and state financial assistance passed through other government agencies is
included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financials
assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and federal awards and
state financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting
with the exceptions of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are
presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are
described in Note 1 of the Board's basic financial statements. The information in
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. The
District has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue
fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedule (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-
regulated legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting,
revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have
been made.

The General fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid
payment in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A
18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, that payment is not recognized until the
subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state
aid payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in
the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related
revenue, whereas GAAP basis does not.
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NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

NOTE 5:

Township of Montgomery School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2022

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is
($71,267.00) for the general fund, $113,413.33 for the special revenue fund and
$61,898.24 for the capital projects fund. See the notes to the required
supplementary information for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the
modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds.
Federal awards and state financial assistance revenues are reported in the

Board's basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total

General Fund $17,190.01 $29,964,405.65 $29,981,595.66

Special Revenue Fund 2,384,294.39 72,708.00 2,457,002.39

Capital Projects Fund 177,839.00 177,839.00

Debt Service Fund 691,892.00 691,892.00

Food Service Fund 2,630,432.88 44 509.19 2,674,942.07

$5,031,917.28 $30,951,353.84 $35,983,271.12

GAAP Adjustment (228,088.33) 124,043.76 (104,044.57)
Total Awards &

Financial Assistance $4,803,828.95 $31,075,397.60 $35,879,226.55

RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal and state financial reports.

OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported in the Food Distribution Program represent
current year value received and current year distributions respectively. The
amount reported as TPAF pension contributions, post-retirement medical
benefits and long-term disability insurance represents the amount paid by the
state on behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2022, TPAF Social
Security contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the state for the
employer's share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the year
ended June 30, 2022.
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Township of Montgomery School District

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section | —~ Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements
(1) Type of Auditor's Report Issued:
(2) Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

(a) Material weakness identified?

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered

to be material weaknesses?

(3) Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted?

Federal Program(s}

(1) Internal Control Over Major Federal Programs:

(a) Material weakness identified?

(a) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered

to be material weaknesses?

2) Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major federal

program(s)?

(3) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in

accordance with the Uniform Guidance?

(4) Identification of Major Federal Program(s):

Program

Education Stabilization Fund:
CARES - ESSERF
CARES - ESSER |
ARP- ESSER

Child Nutrition Cluster:
National School Breakfast Program
National School Lunch Program
National School Lunch Program- Commodities
P-EBT Administrative
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84.425D
84.425D
84.425U

10.553
10.555
10.555
10.555

EXHIBIT "K-6”

Unmodified

No

No

No

No

No

Unmaodified

No



Township of Montgomery School District

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fisca!l Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results {Continued)

Federal Program(s) (Continued)

®)

(6

Program Threshoid Determination:
Type A Federal Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B Federal Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance? Yes

State Programis)

M

3)

4

(%)

Internal Control Over Major State Programs:
(a) Material weakness identified? No

{b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? No

Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major state

program{s)? Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 15-087? No

Identification of Major State Program(s):

Grant
Program Number
Categorical Transportation Aid 22-495-034-5120-014
Extraordinary Aid 22-495-034-5120-044

Program Threshold Determination:
Type A State Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B State Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under NJ OMB Circular 15-087 Yes
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Township of Montgomery School District

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section Il — Financial Statement Audit — Reported Findings
Under Government Auditing Standards

Internal Control Findings

None Reported

Compliance Findings

None Reported

Section Hll - Findings and Questioned Costs Relative to Major Federal and State Programs

Federal Programs — None Reported

State Programs — None Reported
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EXHIBIT "K-7"
Township of Montgomery School District

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

There were no prior year findings.
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